
 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED 
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

 

GOVERNING BOARD REGULAR MEETING INFORMATION 
 

Meeting Date & Time 
Thursday, November 1, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

Meeting Location 
Mono County Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

452 Old Mammoth Road, 3rd Floor 
Mammoth Lakes, California 93546 

 
District Board 

David Griffith, Alpine County, Chair 
Dan Totheroh, Inyo County, Vice Chair 

Ron Hames, Alpine County 
Fred Stump, Mono County 
Matt Kingsley, Inyo County 
Stacy Corless, Mono County 

John Wentworth, Town of Mammoth Lakes 
 

 
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514 

(760) 872-8211   E-mail: pkiddoo@gbuapcd.org 



GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514‐3537 

Tel: 760‐872‐8211   www.gbuapcd.org 

GOVERNING BOARD REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2018 AT 10:00 AM 
Mono County Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

452 Old Mammoth Road, 3rd Floor 
Mammoth Lakes, California 93546 

 

 

 

 
Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District is a California regional government  

agency that works to protect the people and the environment of Alpine, Mono and Inyo Counties  
from the harmful effects of air pollution. 

 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda (No Action) 

3. Consent Items (Action) 

a. Approval of the September 6, 2018 Regular Governing Board Meeting Minutes ...........1 

b. Approval for Annual Support Renewal Payment to Agilaire for Hosted AirVision Air 
Monitoring Database Services in the Amount of $12,913 ................................................8 

c. Sole Source Determination and Approval of Agreement with Peter Hsiao of King & 
Spaulding, LLP for the Provision of Routine and Special Legal Services for the 
Remainder of Fiscal Year 2018-2019 .............................................................................12 

d. Designation and Disposal of Surplus Equipment ...........................................................19 

4.    Approval of Agreement with the National Academy of Sciences (Action)  ........................21   

5. Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts (No Action)  ....................................................67 

6. Informational Items (No Action) 

a. Travel Report ..................................................................................................................96 

i. Air Sensors International Conference Travel Report ...........................................97 

ii. National Ambient Air Monitoring Conference Travel Report .............................99 

b. Permit Enforcement Activity Report ............................................................................101 

c. Contracts Signed by the Air Pollution Control Officer ................................................102 

d. Fiscal Year 2018-2019 1st Quarter Financial Reports (July 1 – September 30)  ..........103 

e. Fiscal Year 2018-2019 State Subvention Funding Application ...................................111 

f. Update on Woodsmoke Reduction Pilot Program ........................................................130 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

Assistance for those with disabilities: If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please 
call Tori DeHaven, Board Clerk, at (760) 872-8211 for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made. 



November 1, 2018  Mammoth Lakes, California 
 
 
7. Board Member Reports (No Action) 

8. Air Pollution Control Officer Report (No Action)  ............................................................132 

9. Confirm Date and Location of Next Regular Meeting (January 3, 2019, in Inyo County) 133 

10. CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING               
   LITIGATION: 

a. Russell Covington; Robert Moore; Randy Sipes; Randal Sipes, Jr.; Laborers’ 
International Union of North America Local Union No. 783 vs. Great Basin 
Unified Air Pollution Control District; Mono County Superior Court, Case 
No. CV140075; pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9 of the 
California Government Code. 

b. Mammoth Community Water District vs. Great Basin Unified Air Pollution 
Control District; Mono County Superior Court, Case No. CV140076; pursuant 
to subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9 of the California Government Code. 

 

11. CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING               
   LITIGATION: 

         City of Los Angeles vs. Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District, et al., Superior 
    Court of California, County of Sacramento, Case No. 34-2013-80001451-CU-WM-GDS,   
    pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1). 

 

12.    CLOSED SESSION - CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

   Real Property Negotiations. Government Code Section 54956.8. Property: 157                    
    Short Street, Bishop, CA. Agency Negotiator: Air Pollution Control Officer.                       
    Negotiating Parties: Great Basin Governing Board and Owner. Under                                  
    Negotiation: Price and Terms of Sale. 

13. Adjournment 

 

(All Meetings Are Electronically Recorded – All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public 
inspection at the time the record is distributed to all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the 

District office located at 157 Short Street, Bishop, California.) 

********************************************* 



Consent Agenda (Action) - Approval of the September 6, 2018 Regular Governing Board Meeting Minutes 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 3a – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 

 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018   

To: District Governing Board 

From: Tori DeHaven, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Approval of the September 6, 2018 Regular Governing Board Meeting Minutes 
 

 
Summary: 
Attached for the Board’s approval are the minutes from the September 6, 2018 regular meeting held 
in Bridgeport, California.  
 
  
Board Action: 
Staff recommends that the Board review and approve the minutes from the September 6, 2018 
meeting. 
 
 
Attachment:  

1. September 6, 2018 minutes  
 
 
 
   
   
 
 
   
 
 
   
 
   

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 1 of 133



	
	
       September 6, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 1 of 6	 	 																	

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
 

GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 
 

September 6, 2018 
 

(All Meetings Are Mechanically Recorded) 
 

The Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing Board of the Counties of Alpine, Inyo 
and Mono, State of California met at 10:00 am on September 6, 2018 in the Mono County Board of 
Supervisors Chamber (2nd Floor), Mono County Courthouse, Main Street (Highway 395), Bridgeport, 
California 93517. 
 
Governing Board members present:  
                                 David Griffith, Board Chair, Alpine County 
           Dan Totheroh, Board Vice Chair, Inyo County 
           Matt Kingsley, Inyo County 
 Fred Stump, Mono County  
 Katherine Rakow, Alternate Alpine County 
 
Governing Board members absent:  
 John Wentworth, Town of Mammoth Lakes 
           Stacy Corless, Mono County 
           Ron Hames, Alpine County 
A quorum was present. 
 
GBUAPCD staff present:  
 Phill Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 
 Ann Logan, Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer 
 Tori DeHaven, Clerk of the Board 
 
Members of the public included: (as indicated by voluntary sign-in) 
           None. 
 
*Please note that due to background noise, the audio recording is difficult to hear clearly in some parts.  
            

Agenda Item #1 
Call to Order 
Pledge of 
Allegiance 
 

Board Chair Griffith called to order the regular meeting of the Governing Board at 
10:02 a.m.  
 
Board member Kingsley then led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Agenda Item #2 
Public Comment 
on Matters not on 
the Agenda 
(No Action) 

Board Chair Griffith asked for public comment on items not on the agenda at 10:03 
am.  
 
Mr. Nelson Mejia, City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (DWP), 
introduced himself to the Board and noted that he would be replacing Mr. Milad 
Taghavi and added that he is optimistic that DWP and the District would be able to 
resolve any outstanding issues.

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 2 of 133



	
	
       September 6, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 2 of 6	 	 																	

Agenda Item #3 
Approval of 
Resolution 2018-
04 Requesting 
Renewal of 
Residential 
Burning 
Exemptions and 
Submission to the 
California Air 
Resources Board 
(Action) 

The public hearing was opened at 10:07 am. Staff made a brief staff report and public 
comment was requested at 10:11 am; no comment was offered. 
 
Motion (Kingsley/Stump) Following the public hearing, and upon asking for and 
receiving no public comments, a motion was made authorizing the Air Pollution 
Control Officer to submit a residential burn renewal exemption request to the 
California Air Resources Board for the Charleston View sub-area and authorizing the 
Air Pollution Control Officer to evaluate and request any future renewal requests for 
existing exemption sub-areas. The Board also adopted Resolution 2018-04 and 
authorized the Air Pollution Control Officer to sign the Exemption Request Letter to 
the California Air Resources Board. 
 
Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Stump, Griffith, Totheroh, Rakow 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth, Corless, Hames 
Motion carried 5/0 and so ordered. 

B/O #180906-03 
 

Agenda Item #4 
Consent Items 
(Action) 

Motion (Totheroh/Kingsley) adopting consent items a, c and d as follows: 
 

a. Approval of the May 10, 2018 Regular Governing Board Meeting Minutes                 
(with corrections made to Board Chair Griffith’s Board Member Report as clarified 
on 9/6/2018) 

c. Authorize APCO to Sign and Submit Application for Subvention Funds 

d. Award Bid and Authorization the Purchase of One (1) New High-Clearance 4-
Door 4-Wheel Drive Sport Utility Vehicle for $36,415.32 
 
Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Stump, Griffith, Totheroh 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: Board Alternate - Rakow 

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth, Corless, Hames 

Motion carried 4/0 and so ordered. 
B/O #180906-04a 

 
Motion (Griffith/Stump) adopting consent item b as follows: 
 
b. Approval of the July 12, 2018 Regular Governing Board Meeting Minutes 
 
Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Stump, Griffith, Totheroh, Rakow 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth, Corless, Hames 

Motion carried 5/0 and so ordered.

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 3 of 133



	
	
       September 6, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 3 of 6	 	 																	

B/O #180906-04b 
 

Agenda Item #5 
Adoption of 
Exceptional 
Events Mitigation 
Plan for the Coso 
Junction PM10 
Planning Area 
(Action) 
 

Mr. Mejia commented that the DWP appreciates the opportunity to provide comments 
on this item. He acknowledged that DWP agrees with APCO Kiddoo as it relates to the 
comments that were made and how they were incorporated in the final Exceptional 
Events Mitigation Plan for the Coso Junction PM10 Planning Area. 
 
Motion (Totheroh/Kingsley) adopting the District’s Exceptional Events Mitigation 
Plan for the Coso Junction PM10 Planning Area for submission to the California Air 
Resources Board and the United States Environmental Protection Agency Region IX 
Administrator for approval. 
 
Ayes: Board Members – Kingsley, Stump, Griffith, Totheroh, Rakow 

Noes: 0 

Abstain: 0 

Absent: Board Members – Wentworth, Corless, Hames 

Motion carried 5/0 and so ordered. 
B/O #180906-05 

 
Agenda Item #6 
Public Outreach 
During Wildfires 
and Development 
of Public Health 
Recommendations 
for Smoky 
Conditions 
(No Action) 

Deputy APCO Logan indicated that her report provides an update of the District’s 
work over the summer wildfire season. This summer all three counties, Inyo, Mono 
and Alpine, experienced widespread and severe wildfire smoke impacts from 
numerous fires including the Lions Fire, Ferguson Fire, Donnell Fire and now the 
Boot Fire. Many communities sustained air quality impacts with hourly particulate 
matter values in the unhealthy or hazardous range with little or no reprieve. District 
staff put forth great effort in several arenas to improve public outreach for the air 
quality impacts due to wildfire smoke. Efforts included monitoring, District website 
updates, public health recommendations and additional public and press outreach. 
Emergency monitors were installed in the communities of Crowley, Bridgeport, 
Walker, Coleville and Woodfords. Low-cost sensors (Purple Air) will be deployed 
starting in Alpine County as soon as a power supply issue is resolved. The District 
website was also updated earlier this year and now provides more expansive public 
health information as well as smoke and wildfire updates. She then asked for 
comments and questions from the Board. 
 
Board member Stump thanked staff for their efforts to improve monitoring as well as 
public outreach concerning wildfire smoke impacts. He indicated that members of the 
communities that he represents have complained to him about smoke impacts and 
how they are being affected by them. He suggested a letter or resolution be written, 
which would be approved by the Board and signed by the Chair, to communicate the 
concerns of the public as well as the Board. Board member Stump also indicated that 
there is a great need for clean air centers in every community as well as the 
availability of a FEMA claims process to help people and businesses impacted by the 
wildfires. Board member Stump also added that the public have expressed concerns 
about the fire agencies not having to file permits with the air district for full 
suppression wildfires.

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 4 of 133



	
	
       September 6, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 4 of 6	 	 																	

Discussion continued regarding the District’s Smoke Management Plan policy as 
well as staff communication with other involved air districts and fire management 
agencies. Staff also indicated that it may be more appropriate for Mono County or the 
Town of Mammoth Lakes to write and approve a resolution as suggested by Board 
member Stump. Members of the Board also agreed that there is a need for clean air 
centers in every community. 
 
Staff added that they are continually looking for places in the various represented 
communities to deploy monitors. 
 
Ms. Cindy Duriscoe, Big Pine Paiute Reservation, noted that some of the actions the 
tribes are taking include having emergency services buildings or centers set up. 
Currently the Big Pine Tribal Wellness Center is the location for emergency services 
as well as a cooling center and as a clean air center. The tribe has also purchase N-95 
masks. At this time, services are for tribal members, elders and the health sensitive 
population. 
 
Deputy APCO Logan suggested that, to help address the Board’s and public’s 
concerns regarding how fires are being managed, staff should revise and renew the 
overdue Memorandum of Agreement the District currently has with the land 
management agencies for both the smoke management program and wildland use for 
resource benefit. The Memorandum of Agreement for Smoke Management was 
signed in 2001 by California Air resources Board, all the forests located within the 
District, the Bureau of Land Management, the National Parks Service; it is currently 
expired and due for renewal. 
 
Board member Stump requested that an item directing staff to renew and revise the 
expired Memorandum of Agreement for Smoke Management, be added to the next 
regular meeting’s agenda.  
 
A break was taken at 11:34 am. The meeting resumed at 11:38 am. 
 

Agenda Item #7 
Informational 
Items 
(No Action) 

It was suggested by Board Chair Griffith that the future permit enforcement activity 
data be presented in spreadsheet form to show trends over a five-year time period and 
that a “year to date” heading be added to future quarterly financial reports to provide 
clarification. 
 

Agenda Item #8 
Board Member 
Reports 
 (No Action) 
 

Board member Totheroh reported that he attended an Eastern Sierra Council on 
Governments meeting where discussions took place regarding forest health and 
prescribed burns. He then stated that there is a desire to utilize, as much as possible, 
woodchips that are a result of fuels management. A question was asked about 
whether they could be used on Owens Lake. 
 
Board Chair Griffith noted that concerning the Woodstove Replacement Program, 
there aren’t enough retailers willing to go to Alpine County. A constituent has 
reported to him that the closest one was in Lone Pine, California. 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 5 of 133



	
	
       September 6, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 5 of 6	 	 																	

 
Ms. DeHaven, Clerk of the Board, replied that there are, in fact, other retailers closer 
than Lone Pine that are willing to go to Alpine County for the Woodstove 
replacement Program. 
 
Board Chair Griffith than asked if the District could accept and utilize retailers that 
have been certified by other air districts in order to reach remote communities. 
 
APCO Kiddoo explained that each air district has their own set of guidelines for 
certifications which may be different from one another. 
 
Board alternate Rakow asked about the waiting list that was generated previously, 
and what happens to those people. 
 
Ms. DeHaven explained that the funding for this program is from a different grant. 
People will have to reapply as waiting lists from previous grants and programs are 
not rolled over to new grants and programs. 
 
Board Chair Griffith commented on how previously, the Region 4 Forest Service and 
Humboldt-Toiyabe did not have a good neighbor authority agreement with 
California. However, a couple of days ago an agreement was signed which means 
that those agencies are eligible for state funding. 
 

 Agenda Item #9 
Air Pollution 
Control Officer’s 
Report  
(No Action) 

APCO Kiddoo gave report on the following items 
1) On Saturday, September 8, Bishop is having a Picnic in the Park event which 

he has been invited to come and speak at. APCO Kiddoo will be giving a talk 
about what the District does. 

 
Agenda Item #10 
Confirm Date and 
Location of Next 
Regular Meeting 
(November 1, 
2018, in Mono 
County, CA) 
(No Action) 
 

The next regular meeting of the District Governing Board will convene at 10:00 am 
on November 1, 2018 in Mammoth Lakes, California. The District’s Clerk of the 
Board will find and reserve a handicap accessible meeting room and contact the 
District Board members as to its location. 

Agenda Item #11 
CLOSED 
SESSION 
 

The Board convened into closed session at 11:57 am. 
 
The Board reconvened into open session at 1:42 pm. 

CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – 
EXISTING LITIGATION: 

a. Russell Covington; Robert Moore; Randy Sipes; Randal Sipes, Jr.; 
Laborers’ International Union of North America Local Union No. 
783 vs. Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District; Mono 
County Superior Court, Case No. CV140075; pursuant to 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 6 of 133



	
	
       September 6, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
       Page 6 of 6	 	 																	

subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9 of the California Government 
Code. 

b. Mammoth Community Water District vs. Great Basin Unified Air 
Pollution Control District; Mono County Superior Court, Case No. 
CV140076; pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9 of the 
California Government Code. 

Report: Information given.
Agenda Item #12 
CLOSED 
SESSION 
 

CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – 
EXISTING LITIGATION: 

      City of Los Angeles vs. Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District, et al., 
Superior Court of California, County of Sacramento, Case No. 34-2013-
80001451-CU-WM-GDS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1). 

 
Report: Information given. 

Agenda Item #13 
CLOSED 
SESSION 

CLOSED SESSION - CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY 
NEGOTIATORS 

Real Property Negotiations. Government Code Section 54956.8. Property: 157 
Short Street, Bishop, CA. Agency Negotiator: Air Pollution Control Officer. 
Negotiating Parties: Great Basin Governing Board and Owner. Under 
Negotiation: Price and Terms of Sale. 

Report: Direction given.
Agenda Item #14 
CLOSED 
SESSION 

CLOSED SESSION - 

      Evaluation of Performance – Section 54957(b)(1) of the California                           
Government Code. Employee Being Evaluated: Air Pollution Control Officer. 

Report: Direction given. 
 

Adjournment The meeting was adjourned by Board Chair Griffith at 1:42 pm. The Board will 
reconvene in open session at 10:00 am, on Thursday, November 1, 2018 in Mammoth 
Lakes, California. 

                                
 

      ________________________ 
                                                                                                             David Griffith, Board Chair                          

Attest: 
 
_______________________ 
Tori DeHaven, Board Clerk 

Agenda Item No. 3a - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 7 of 133



 

 
Consent (Action) – Approval for Annual Support Renewal Payment to Agilaire for Hosted  

AirVision Air Monitoring Database Services in the Amount of $12,913 
November 1, 2018 - Agenda Item No. 3b – Page 1 

GREAT	BASIN	UNIFIED	AIR	POLLUTION	CONTROL	DISTRICT	
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
www.gbuapcd.org  

 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018 

To: District Governing Board 

From: Chris Howard, Senior Research and Systems Analyst 

Subject: Approval for Annual Support Renewal Payment to Agilaire for Hosted AirVision Air 
Monitoring Database Services in the Amount of $12,913 
 

 

 

Summary: 
Since September 2016, the District has relied upon the hosting and technical services of Agilaire LLC 
to manage District air monitoring data in the AirVision air monitoring database. The Annual Hosting 
and Support payment amount for 2018-2019 is $12,913.  This payment will provide the District one 
year of AirVision cloud hosting as well as on-call technical support.  AirVision continues to meet the 
District’s needs and staff recommends its continuation.  In July 2018, the District Governing Board 
determined Agilaire LLC a sole-source provider for District data management systems and data 
acquisition systems. 
 
The essential components of District data processing are 1) data acquisition systems, and 2) data 
management systems. In 2016 the former District data management system, designed in Microsoft 
Access, was nearing maximum storage capacity and in need of replacement. The District performed 
an exhaustive search for an alternative and, after much testing and many trials, decided upon a cloud-
based data management system by Agilaire named AirVision. The Board authorized the purchase of 
the AirVision cloud-hosted system in September 2016 and the District now realizes the benefits of 
the advanced capabilities of AirVision including real-time alerts, automatic data pre-validation, and 
multiple-trigger health alerts. The District data validation process is now fully AirVision-based. 
AirVision has turned out to be very efficient managing vast amounts of data.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The 2018-2019 Annual AirVision Support Renewal payment was anticipated and included in the 
District’s 2018-2019 SB270 Budget under line Item II.K., Professional & Special Services in the 
amount of $14,000.  
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 8 of 133



 

 
Consent (Action) – Approval for Annual Support Renewal Payment to Agilaire for Hosted  

AirVision Air Monitoring Database Services in the Amount of $12,913 
November 1, 2018 - Agenda Item No. 3b – Page 2 

Board Action: 
District Staff recommends the Board approve and authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to sign 
purchase order 2018-59CBH for one Annual AirVision Support Renewal in the amount of $12,913 
from Agilaire LLC, Knoxville, Tennessee. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Agilaire Invoice #104493, dated 8/31/2018, Annual AirVision Support Renewal – hosted 
system – through 9/1/2019 

2. Purchase Order 2018-59CBH with Agilaire for one Annual AirVision Support Renewal – 
hosted system, covering services between 9/1/2018 and 9/1/2019. 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 9 of 133



Invoice
Date

8/31/2018

Invoice #

104493

Bill To

Great BasinUnified APCD
157 Short Street
Bishop, CA 872-8211

Ship To

Agilaire LLC

2904-B Tazewell Pike
Suite A
Knoxville, TN  37918

P.O. Number Terms

Net 90

Ship

8/1/2018

Via

Federal Express

F.O.B.

Knoxville, TN

Project

Phone #

865-927-9440

Fax #

865-927-9552

E-mail

info@agilairecorp.com

Total

Item Code DescriptionQuantity Price Each Amount

AirVision Support  Renewal Hosted System (SaaS) with ADVP, FIT, PARS, 20 Direct
Poll through 9/1/19

1 12,913.00 12,913.00

$12,913.00

Agenda Item No. 3b - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 10 of 133



This number must appear on all related correspondence & invoices.

Federal Tax ID No. 43-2106258

Vendor: Ship to:
Name Name

Company Company

Address Address

City/State/Zip City / State / Zip

Phone Phone

Acct. No. Ship Via

Reference Terms

P.O. Date: Date Required:

Quantity Units Description Unit Price TOTAL
1 12,913.00$                 

-$                            
-$                            
-$                            

 -$                            
-$                            

 -$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            
-$                            

SubTotal 12,913.00$                 
Is this order paid by credit card? YES NO X Shipping & Handling 
Ordered By: Taxes:  Rate:

TOTAL* 12,913.00$                 
 

BUDGET: Task # or budget category:
SB 270 2.K.9 ( Prof and other

Approved: __________________________________ Services)
District

Date: _________________
* Purchase Orders totaling $500.00 or more must first be:
 (1) Submitted to the Projects Manager (original + 1 copy); and
 (2) Approved and signed by the APCO prior to ordering. ________ Reviewed for PBC Policy (P. Kiddoo)

________ Budget Log (S. Cash)
 

 ________ Fiscal Services (P Gilpin)

Annual AirVision Support Renewal
Hosted System (SaaS) with ADVP, FIT, PARS,

NOTES:
Agilaire is a GBUAPCD sole-source provider for AirVision.

  Great Basin Unified Air Pollution
  Control District

  760-872-8211  Fax: 760-872-6109

20 Direct Poll

Agilaire LLC
2904-B Tazewell Pike, Suite A

Knoxville, TN 37918
865.927.9440

2018-2019 agreement spans 9/1/2018-8/31/2019

8/31/18

  157 Short Street

  Bishop, California 93514

Chris Howard

100%

11/1/18

157 Short Street
Bishop, CA  93514
(760) 872-8211

Proposal dated 8/31/2018  

Chris Howard
Great Basin Unified APCD

2018-59CBHPurchase Order No.

$12,913.00

PURCHASE ORDER

Agenda Item No. 3b - Attachment 2
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 11 of 133



 

Consent Agenda (Action) – Sole Source Determination and Approval of Agreement with Peter Hsiao of King & Spaulding, 
LLP for the Provision of Routine and Special Legal Services for the Remainder of Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 3c – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018 

To: District Governing Board 

From: Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 
Susan Cash, Administrative Projects Manager 
 

Subject: Sole Source Determination and Approval of Agreement with Peter Hsiao of King & 
Spaulding, LLP for the Provision of Routine and Special Legal Services for the 
Remainder of Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 

The District’s total budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19 contains funds for legal services, which had 
been allocated to a contract with Morrison and Foerster for the services of Peter Hsiao.  Mr. Hsiao 
is no longer working for Morrison and Foerster and is now with King & Spaulding.  

 
Peter Hsiao has been providing legal services to the District specific to environmental issues 
surrounding Owens Lake and Mono Lake.  Mr. Hsiao is the only outside legal counsel with prior 
continuous expertise in California Health & Safety Code Section 42316, and the many prior 
agreements between the LADWP and the District.  Mr. Hsiao, specifically, has worked on cases for 
the District since 1998.  Mr. Hsiao’s knowledge and professional legal services on a vast number of 
Owens Lake issues, including federal and state air pollution law, the Clean Air Act, HSC Section 
42316, and the California Environmental Quality Act, have been invaluable in helping to develop 
the necessary agreements, language and documentation to control the air pollution due to the 
LADWP’s water diversions from Owens Lake.  Mr. Hsiao’s legal expertise on environmental 
issues regarding Owens Lake and Mono Lake is unparalleled, as evidenced most recently by his 
articulate and successful defense of the District during the California Superior Court force majeure 
hearing initiated by City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power earlier this year.  The 
District, represented by Mr. Hsiao, has prevailed in all legal disputes and litigation with the City to 
date.  There is a substantial history of successful defense resulting in decisions in favor of the 
District including the dismissal of two City lawsuits against the District and the ruling from CARB 
rejecting all the City’s arguments to appeal the reasonableness and validity of the 2011 SCRD.   
 
Mr. Hsiao’s depth of knowledge and intimate understanding of the District and of the legal issues 
surrounding the Owens Lake and Mono Lake environmental concerns makes him, regardless of 
which firm he associates with, an invaluable asset to the District.  Mr. Hsiao is uniquely qualified to 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 12 of 133



 

Consent Agenda (Action) – Sole Source Determination and Approval of Agreement with Peter Hsiao of King & Spaulding, 
LLP for the Provision of Routine and Special Legal Services for the Remainder of Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 3c – Page 2 

provide legal advice on these matters.  Mr. Hsiao has developed experience with the District that is 
unmatched by any other lawyer, and there would be substantial increase in costs to the District to 
replace him with other counsel who would lack the base of knowledge and expertise to effectively 
represent the District.  Staff recommends that Mr. Peter Hsiao of King & Spaulding, LLP be 
determined a sole-source provider of legal services to the District.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 

The attached agreement, like those of legal services in the past, does not have a dollar amount.  The 
remaining SB 270 funds ($54,459 from Fiscal Year 2017-2018, and $250,000 from Fiscal Year 
2018-2019) of $304,459 less any outstanding unknown bills, be reallocated from Morrison and 
Foerster to a new agreement with Mr. Hsiao’s new firm of King & Spaulding. The amount to be 
encumbered for payment to this firm will not exceed $304,459 for SB 270 related legal services as 
approved in the final Fiscal year 2018-2019 budget. 
 
Board Action: 
Staff recommends that the Board:  

1. Declare Mr. Peter Hsiao of King & Spaulding, LLP, as a sole source provider of legal 
services for the District, and 

2. Approve the attached agreement with Spaulding & King, LLP, and  
3. Authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to sign the agreement. 

 
Attachment: 

1. Agreement for Legal Services 
 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 13 of 133



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 14 of 133



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 15 of 133



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 16 of 133



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 17 of 133



Agenda Item No. 3c - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 18 of 133



Consent Agenda (Action) - Designation and Disposal of Surplus Equipment 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 3d – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Susan Cash, Administrative Projects Manager  

Subject: Designation and Disposal of Surplus Equipment  

Summary: 
The District’s Purchase, Bidding and Contracting Policy (Rule 1101) contains a section that sets 
forth a procedure for the disposal of surplus materials (Section 4.3). The procedure requires 
District staff to prepare a list of surplus materials with a disposal justification and an estimated 
value for each item. The list must then be submitted to the Board for their review and approval. 
Upon approval of the list, the items may be offered to local schools, governments or non-profit 
organizations. Valueless items may be disposed of as refuse. The remaining materials are 
disposed of via public auction sale to the highest bidder. Any items remaining after the public 
auction may be disposed of as refuse.  
 
The District currently has computer equipment, office equipment, miscellaneous scientific 
equipment, and a vehicle that has been replaced, is inoperable, or is obsolete. The equipment is 
listed on the following page and is estimated to have little or no value or would cost more to 
dispose through the bidding process than the District would recoup. Staff requests that the Board 
declare this equipment as surplus and authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to dispose of all 
equipment by offering it at no-cost to local schools, other government agencies, or to charitable 
non-profit organizations and disposing of remaining equipment.  
 
The vehicle will be offered at a minimum bid of 70% of its low Blue Book value.  The bidding 
procedure is set forth in Section 4.3 and requires publication of notice in the newspaper and the 
submission and opening of sealed bids. The proceeds from the sale of the vehicle will be credited 
to the budget from which the vehicle was purchased (50% District, 50% SB270). 
 
The list of surplus equipment and vehicle is attached. 
 
Board Action:  
Staff recommends the Board declare as surplus all equipment and vehicle listed on the 
attachment and authorize the APCO to dispose of such as provided in the District’s Purchase, 
Bidding and Contract Policy (Section 4.3 of Rule 1101). 
 
Attachment: 

1. 2018 Surplus List 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 19 of 133



2018 Surplus List
Item

Scientific and Field Equipment

2 Advantech Industrial Computers

Sigma 950 Flow Meter

Met One GT 641 Particle Counter

Environmental Systems Corp datalogger

CD Nova Thermal Oxidizer

154 Campbell dataloggers, various models

Tobal Analytical Balance, Mdl. EA‐1AP

2 R.M. Young Anemometers, various models

5 Liebert UPS Units, various models

Yokogawa Chart Recorder, Mdl.305723

2 Honda ATVs

84 Campbell Scientific radios

88 Campbell Scientific modems 

65 10/ 20 watt solar panels (various makes)

32 Yagi antennas

7 Campbell Scientific Storage Modules (various sizes)

1 Campbell Scientific Keypad

7 VCRs (various brands) 

3 TSI DustTrak II HC model 8531 
2 R&P 1400 series TEOM Control Units

2 R&P 1400 series TEOM weighing units

1 Thermo Scientific 1405 TEOM 

10 misc electronic cases (laptop, camera, palm pilot etc)

2 small generators (Honda & Coleman) 

2 Yokogawa 3057 portable recorder 

Tracor Atlas, Inc. model 825R Hydrogen Sulfide Gas Analyzer 

Magnehelic Hi‐Vol flow meter 

Computer Equipment

1 Dell Optiplex 980

1 Dell PowerEdge 1410

1 Dell Dimension 9150

1 Dell 8400

1 Apple Mac G4

1 Apple iMac

1 Apple Mac G5

1 Apple iMac 27"

1 Apple Cinema Display

2 Samsung Computer Monitor

1 NEC Computer Monitor

Office Equipment

Various desks, chairs, cabinets, file cabinets, bookcases, tables

Vehicle

2000 Toyota 4Runner 

Agenda Item No. 3d - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 20 of 133



Approval of Agreement with the National Academy of Science (Action) 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 4 – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer  

Subject: Approval of Agreement with the National Academy of Sciences 
 

 

 
Summary: 
In the 2014 Stipulated Judgment, the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District (District) 
and Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (City) agreed to establish the Owens Lake 
Scientific Advisory Panel (OLSAP) and specified the National Academy of Sciences (NAS) to 
establish, staff, and administer the OLSAP.  The NAS is a nonprofit, non-governmental 
organization, founded by an 1863 Congressional charter, to provide independent, objective advice 
to the nation on matters related to science and technology.  

The purpose of the OLSAP is to evaluate, assess and provide ongoing advice on the reduction of 
airborne dust in the Owens Valley.  It is intended for the OLSAP to foster communication and 
understanding on the scientific and technical approaches and become a vehicle for increased 
cooperation and collaboration between the District and the City in balancing the requirement to 
meet air quality standards and conserve water.  The duties of the OLSAP are solely advisory in 
nature and in no way alter the authority and responsibility of the District, District Governing Board 
or the Air Pollution Control Officer.  

 
In March 2015, the District and City agreed to defer initiating the OLSAP to pursue higher priority 
provisions of the 2014 Stipulated Judgment.  In 2017, the District and City began working with 
NAS on the OLSAP’s scope of work and a work plan for the initial task.  The 2014 Stipulated 
Judgment specified the initial OLSAP task to “evaluate the effectiveness of alternative dust control 
methodologies for their degree of PM10 reduction at the Owens Lake bed and reduce use of water in 
controlling dust emissions from the dried lake beds”.  Following completion of the study process 
for each task, the NAS will submit final reports to the District and City.  The attached agreement for 
professional services with the NAS is for the term of November 1, 2018 to April 30, 2020, the 
period necessary for the OLSAP to complete the initial task. 
  

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 21 of 133



Approval of Agreement with the National Academy of Science (Action) 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 4 – Page 2 

 
Following completion of the initial task, the 2014 Stipulated Judgment states the OLSAP will meet 
at least annually until 2025 and may be assigned additional tasks.  The District and City have 
developed several potential future tasks for consideration: 
 

 Evaluate Additional Best Available Control Measure (BACM) Performance Tests 
 Use of Sprinklers to Control Dust Emissions on the Owens Lake Playa 
 Evaluate the Sources of High Off-Lake Dust Concentrations Arriving at Owens Lake 

Shoreline PM10 Monitors 
 Dust Sources Impacting the Community of Keeler 
 Climate Change Preparation and Planning 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
The total estimated cost for the 18-month term of the agreement is $850,758.  As required by the 
2014 Stipulated Judgement, all financial support for the OLSAP shall be provided by the City 
pursuant to fee orders by the District under California Health & Safety Code §42316.  Funding for 
the OLSAP in the amount of $750,000 is currently available as approved and adopted by the 
Governing Board in the Fiscal Year 2018 -2019 Budget from unexpended Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
funds. 
 
Future SB 270 fee orders for the OLSAP will vary based on future agreements and tasks submitted 
to the NAS.  Annual funding for the OLSAP may range from $500,000 to $750,000.  If necessary, 
the City will be responsible to provide additional funding, up to $2,000,000 annually, for reporting 
and analyzing new and relevant testing data. 
 
Any remaining OLSAP funds in the SB 270 budget at the completion of NAS contracting and 
OLSAP work will be credited to the SB 270 fee for the subsequent fiscal year.  The SB 270 fee 
assessment will be credited by the amount of unspent funds from the OLSAP budget line item to 
the SB 270 total operating budget. 
 
Board Action:  
Staff recommends that the Board approve and authorize the Air Pollution Control Officer to sign 
and execute the attached agreement with the National Academy of Sciences. 
 
 
Attachment: 
 

1. Agreement between Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District and National 
Academy of Sciences for the Provision of Professional Services  

 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 22 of 133



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

AND NATIONAL ACADEMY of SCIENCES 
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 INTRODUCTION 

WHEREAS, the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District (hereinafter referred to as 
"District”) seeks the Professional services of National Academy of Sciences of Washington, DC 
(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, 
covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the District, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  

Services and work provided by the Contractor under this Agreement will be performed in a 
manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, county, and local laws, ordinances, resolutions, directions and the NAS institutional 
study policies. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited 
to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

The Contractor acknowledges that satisfactory performance of the work set forth in Attachment 
A requires it to produce written work product of high quality and thoroughness to address the 
issues presented and to provide useful and practical analysis and recommendations, with such 
work performed within the budget as set forth in this Agreement. 

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from November 1, 2018 to April 30, 2020 unless sooner 
terminated as provided below. 

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation.  District shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Costs
(set forth as Attachment B NAS Cost Proposal) for the services and work described in
Attachment A NAS Technical Proposal which are performed by Contractor at the District's
request in compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

Page 1 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 23 of 133



B. Travel and per diem.  District shall reimburse Contractor for travel expenses and per diem 
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by District under this 
Agreement.  Contractor shall request approval by the District prior to incurring any travel or per 
diem expenses not included in the NAS Cost Proposal.  Requests by Contractor for approval to 
incur additional travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted in writing to Phillip L. Kiddoo, 
Air Pollution Control Officer. Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in accordance 
with the Schedule of Costs (Attachment B). The District reserves the right to deny reimbursement 
to Contractor for travel or per diem expenses which are not included in the NAS Cost Proposal 
and are incurred by the Contractor without the prior written approval of the District. 

 
C. Other Costs. District shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Costs 
(Attachment B) for those Other Costs which are specifically identified in the Schedule of Costs and 
which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work under this 
Agreement. Reimbursement by District for such Other Costs will be limited to Contractor's actual 
cost and applicable indirect costs and as adjusted for any future changes to the NAS official indirect 
rates negotiated with the Federal government.   

 
D. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from District, any additional consideration, compensation, 
salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.   

 
E. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by 
the District to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including, labor, 
travel, per diem, other direct costs and incidental expenses, if any, shall not exceed $ 850,781.00 
Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). The District expressly reserves the right to 
deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed, 
including travel, per diem, or other expenses which is more than the contract limit. 
F. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the District, once a month, an itemized 
statement of costs incurred by Contractor in performing services and work described in 
Attachment A, in the NAS standard billing format (SF 1034/1035) to include all cost line items 
incurred in the month.  The invoice will be submitted to the District approximately the third 
week of the month.  The statement to be submitted will cover the period from   the first (1st) 
day of the preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. The 
invoice will be accompanied by a labor report including all staff whose time is being billed and a 
monthly progress report indicating what work was conducted during the prior month (e.g., 
research, attend meetings, telephone conference with (name)). 

G. Federal and State taxes. 
 

(1) District will not withhold any federal or state income taxes or social security from 
any payments made by District to Contractor under the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. 

 
(2) Contractor has provided a CAL Form 590 “Withholding Exemption 

Certificate”, and no taxes will be withheld. (Attachment C). 

Page 2 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 24 of 133



(3) Except as set forth above, District has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by District to Contractor under this Agreement.
Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole
responsibility of Contractor. District has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by District to Contractor will be reported annually to the
Internal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To
facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the District an
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of   these services and 
work will require a varied   schedule.  Contractor will arrange its own schedule but will coordinate 
with District to ensure that all services and work requested   by District under this Agreement 
will be performed within the period of performance of this contract. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be
procured by Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as
otherwise may be required. Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain
such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits
may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and
business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force
by Contractor at no expense to the District. Where there is a dispute between Contractor and
District as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services
identified in Attachment A, District reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered
transactions by any federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not
suspended or debarred from receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded
from Federal Procurement or Non-Procurement Programs issued by the General Services
Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.

Page 3 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 25 of 133

http://www.sam.gov


6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment 
A to this Agreement. Incidental expenses not specifically identified in the Schedule of Costs 
(Attachment   B), necessary for performance of the services may be reimbursed or paid to the 
Contractor, provided the District’s written approval is obtained in advance. 

7. DISTRICT PROPERTY.

A. Personal Property of District. Any personal property such as, but not limited to,
protective   or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by
District pursuant to this   Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the
sole and exclusive property of District. Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard
and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially
responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of
Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes,
computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio
recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions,
patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced,
assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or
work under this Agreement (the “Works”) are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain,
the  sole  and exclusive property of the Contractor.   The District shall have access to review and
copy the Works and shall have a no-cost irrevocable worldwide license in the Works to use and have
used solely for the District’s non-commercial purposes.   At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all final versions of the Works to the District.

8. WORKERS ‘COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall provide Statutory Washington, D.C. Worker's Compensation coverage and 
Employer's Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees 
engaged in services or operations under this Agreement. The District, its agents, officers, 
employees, and volunteers shall be named as additional insured, or a waiver of subrogation shall 
be provided. 

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the 
scope and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that 
attachment. 

Page 4 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 26 of 133



10. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or 
employees of District. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur 
any obligation on behalf of District. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has 
no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the District.  No agent, 
officer, or employee of the District is to be considered an employee of Contractor. It is understood 
by both Contractor and District that this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be 
construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture. As an 
independent contractor: 

 
A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work 
and services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 

 
B. Contractor shall be responsible to District only for the requirements and results specified 
in this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to 
District's control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this 
Agreement. 

 
C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of 
this Agreement shall represent and conduct themselves as, independent contractors, and not as 
employees of District. 

 
11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall indemnify, and hold harmless District, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other 
costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection 
with, the performance of this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or 
employees. Contractor's obligation to indemnify, and hold the District, its agents, officers, 
employees, and volunteers harmless applies to any actual or alleged personal injury, death, or 
damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use.  Contractor's 
obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other 
costs which is caused in whole or in part by any negligent or wrongful act of the Contractor, its 
agents, employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone 
for whose acts or omissions any of them may be liable.

 
Contractor's obligation to indemnify, and hold the District, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, 
any requirement in this Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of 
insurance. 

  

Page 5 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 27 of 133



To the extent permitted by law, District shall indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its 
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, 
liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, 
or resulting from, the active negligence, or wrongful acts of District, its officers, employees, or 
volunteers. 

12. CANCELLATION. 

This Agreement may be canceled by District without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this 
Agreement  without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written 
notice of such intent to cancel to District, provided that upon such cancellation, the District shall 
not be responsible for any further payments to the Contractor, and the Contractor shall be 
responsible to provide all final deliverables completed at the time of termination, and shall not 
include Deliberative Records described in paragraph 13.  Contractor shall also provide copies of any 
public access file materials received by Contractor as of the date of the termination notice. 
Contractor acknowledges its cancellation before it completes the scope of work may materially 
prejudice the District by depriving it of the benefit of this Agreement and shall take all reasonable 
measures to avoid cancellation and if it does cancel, to take all reasonable measures to mitigate the 
adverse impacts on the District that will result from such cancellation. 

 
13. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, municipal, and District law, ordinances, regulations, 
and directions.  Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the 
termination or completion of this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain 
records as required by this paragraph by substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other 
authentic reproduction of such records. 

 
B. Inspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of District shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, 
which District determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, 
evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be 
maintained by Contractor.  Further, District has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, 
or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this Agreement.  The 
District’s right shall not extend to the deliberative committee records of the Contractor, 
including without limitation, records of votes, tallies, internal communications among and 
between committee members, and draft reports (the “Deliberative Records”). 

  

Page 6 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 28 of 133



14. ASSIGNMENT. 

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. District has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Contractor shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it except as itemized in 
the NAS Cost Proposal (i.e., the consultant/science writer), without the express written consent 
of District. Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this 
Agreement without the prior   written consent of District. 

 
15. DEFAULT. 

If the Contractor abandons the work or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
District in a timely manner or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as 
required by the District, the District may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this 
Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, 
District will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to Contractor for services and work satisfactorily 
performed to the date of termination and any already incurred obligations which cannot be 
refunded or terminated without cost. 

 
16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to 
be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of 
the terms of this   Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-
four 
(24) below. 

 
17. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall 
not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, 
or applicant for employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, 
religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, 
or sex. Contractor and its agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the 
Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable 
regulations promulgated thereunder in the California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also 
abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all amendments thereto, and all 
administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

  

Page 7 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 29 of 133



18. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

Any written materials provided to Contractor by individuals who are not officials, agents, or 
employees of Contractor, will be listed in a public access file (PAF) established by Contractor that 
is available to the public upon request.  Documents provided by the District or GBUAPCD that 
include specific information on the location of tribal and cultural artifacts or burial sites and that 
are clearly marked as non-public (Cultural Protected Information) will not be listed in the PAF to 
protect those resources. The presentation of specific information on the location of tribal and 
cultural artifacts and burial sites by the District may be held in a data-gathering session not open 
to the public based on an advance understanding of the protected nature of the information to be 
provided.  

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county 
laws, regulations, ordinances and District rules providing that Cultural Protected information and 
records described above kept, maintained, or accessible by Contractor in the course of providing 
services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential. 
Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such Cultural Protected information and records. 
Disclosure of such confidential, privileged, or protected Cultural Protected information shall be 
made by Contractor only with the express written consent of the District. Any disclosure of 
Cultural Protected information by Contractor without the District’s written consent is solely and 
exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects. 

 
19. CONFLICTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services 
under this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to complete and file a conflict interest statement if 
requested by the District. District will notify Contractor, if such a request is made, of Contractor's 
disclosure category under the conflict of interest laws. 

 
20. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is 
gained from the District in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any 
personal benefit, gain, or enhancement. 

 
21. SEVERABILITY. 

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person  or  circumstance  shall  be  
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any 
federal, state, county, or District statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of  
this Agreement, or the application thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in 
full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

  

Page 8 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 30 of 133



22. FUNDING LIMITATION. 

The ability of District to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various 
sources.  In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more 
sources, District has the option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms 
within ten (10) days of its notifying Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of 
available funding.  Any reduction or modification of this Agreement made pursuant to this 
provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-three (23) (Amendment). 

 
23. AMENDMENT. 

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the 
mutual consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and 
executed with the same formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity. 

 
24. NOTICE. 

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or 
District shall be   required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and       may be 
personally served, or sent by prepaid first- class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

 
Great Basin Unified 
Air Pollution Control District 
 
Attn: Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution 
Control Officer 
Address: 157 Short Street 
City, State, Zip Bishop, CA 93514 

 
25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 
Contractor: 
 
Name: National Academy of Sciences,  
Office of Contracts and Grants  
Douglas E. Denning, Contract Manager 
Address: 500 Fifth Street NW, Keck 1050 
City, Sate, Zip: Washington, DC 20001 

 
This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, 
inducements, promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or 
incorporated herein by reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision 
hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing 
executed by the parties hereto. 

 
# # 

  

Page 9 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 31 of 133



 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 1st DAY OF 
November 2018. 

 
GREAT BASIN UNIFIED 
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

 
By:    

                    PRINT NAME 
 
           
                     SIGNATURE 
 

Dated:    
 
 
 
 

CONTRACTOR 
 
By:   

                    PRINT NAME 
 
 
  
                     SIGNATURE 
 

Dated:    
 
  

Page 10 of 44

Douglas E. Denning, Contract Manager

National Academy of
Sciences

10/18/2018

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 32 of 133



 
ATTACHMENT A 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

 
GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

AND National Academy of Sciences 
FOR THE PROVISION OF 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  

 
TERM: 

FROM: November 1, 2018 TO: April 30, 2020 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 

SEE ATTACHED PROPOSAL No. 10003901 (revised August 2018) cover through page 11 

Page 11 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 33 of 133



for

Page 12 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 34 of 133



Page 13 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 35 of 133



Page 14 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 36 of 133



Page 15 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 37 of 133



Page 16 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 38 of 133



Page 17 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 39 of 133



Page 18 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 40 of 133



Page 19 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 41 of 133



Page 20 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 42 of 133



Page 21 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 43 of 133



Page 22 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 44 of 133



Page 23 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 45 of 133



ATTACHMENT B 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

AND National Academy of Sciences 
FOR THE PROVISION OF 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 TERM: 

FROM: November 1, 2018 TO: April 30, 2020 

SCHEDULE OF COSTS: 

SEE ATTACHED COST PROPOSAL (15 PAGES) 

Page 24 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 46 of 133



Page 25 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 47 of 133



Page 26 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 48 of 133



Page 27 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 49 of 133



Page 28 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 50 of 133



Page 29 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 51 of 133



Page 30 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 52 of 133



Page 31 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 53 of 133



Page 32 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 54 of 133



Page 33 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 55 of 133



Page 34 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 56 of 133



Page 35 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 57 of 133



Page 36 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 58 of 133



Page 37 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 59 of 133



Page 38 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 60 of 133



Page 39 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 61 of 133



ATTACHMENT C 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

AND National Academy of Sciences 
FOR THE PROVISION OF 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  

TERM: 
FROM: November 1, 2018 TO: April 30, 2020 

See Attached CAL Form 590 Withholding 
Exemption Certificate 

Page 40 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 62 of 133



Ú±®³  ëçð îðïé

Ò¿³»

Ò¿³»  ÍÍÒ ±® ×Ì×Ò ÚÛ×Ò Ýß Ý±®° ²±ò 

ß¼¼®» ø¿°¬òñ¬»òô ®±±³ô ÐÑ ¾±¨ô ±® ÐÓÞ ²±ò÷

Ý·¬§ ø×º §±« ¸¿ª» ¿ º±®»·¹² ¿¼¼®»ô »» ·²¬®«½¬·±²ò÷  Í¬¿¬»  Æ×Ð ½±¼»

ÌßÈßÞÔÛ ÇÛßÎ

îðïè

ÝßÔ×ÚÑÎÒ×ß ÚÑÎÓ 

ëçð
Ì¸» °¿§»» ½±³°´»¬» ¬¸· º±®³ ¿²¼ «¾³·¬ ·¬ ¬± ¬¸» ©·¬¸¸±´¼·²¹ ¿¹»²¬ò Ì¸» ©·¬¸¸±´¼·²¹ ¿¹»²¬ µ»»° ¬¸· º±®³ ©·¬¸ ¬¸»·® ®»½±®¼ò

É·¬¸¸±´¼·²¹ ß¹»²¬ ×²º±®³¿¬·±²

Ð¿§»» ×²º±®³¿¬·±²

Û¨»³°¬·±² Î»¿±²

Ý¸»½µ ±²´§ ±²» ¾±¨ò

®»¯«·®»³»²¬ ±² °¿§³»²¬ø÷ ³¿¼» ¬± ¬¸» »²¬·¬§ ±® ·²¼·ª·¼«¿´ò

× ¿³ ¿ ®»·¼»²¬ ±º Ý¿´·º±®²·¿ ¿²¼ × ®»·¼» ¿¬ ¬¸» ¿¼¼®» ¸±©² ¿¾±ª»ò ×º × ¾»½±³» ¿ ²±²®»·¼»²¬ ¿¬ ¿²§ ¬·³»ô × ©·´´ °®±³°¬´§ 

Ý±®°±®¿¬·±²æ
Ì¸» ½±®°±®¿¬·±² ¸¿ ¿ °»®³¿²»²¬ °´¿½» ±º ¾«·²» ·² Ý¿´·º±®

½±®°±®¿¬·±² ½»¿» ¬± ¸¿ª» ¿ °»®³¿²»²¬ °´¿½» ±º ¾«·²» ·² Ý¿´·º±®²·¿ ±® ½»¿» ¬± ¼± ¿²§ ±º ¬¸» ¿¾±ª»ô × ©·´´ °®±³°¬´§ ²±¬·º§ 

Ð¿®¬²»®¸·° ±® Ô·³·¬»¼ Ô·¿¾·´·¬§ Ý±³°¿²·» øÔÔÝ÷æ
Ì¸» °¿®¬²»®¸·° ±® ÔÔÝ ¸¿ ¿ °»®³¿²»²¬ °´¿½» ±º ¾«·²» ·² Ý¿´·º±®²·¿ ¿¬ ¬¸» ¿¼¼®» ¸±©² ¿¾±ª» ±® · ®»¹·¬»®»¼ ©·¬¸ ¬¸» 

±® ÔÔÝ ½»¿» ¬± ¼± ¿²§ ±º ¬¸» ¿¾±ª»ô × ©·´´ °®±³°¬´§ ·²º±®³ ¬¸» ©·¬¸¸±´¼·²¹ ¿¹»²¬ò Ú±® ©·¬¸¸±´¼·²¹ °«®°±»ô ¿ ´·³·¬»¼ ´·¿¾·´·¬§ 
°¿®¬²»®¸·° øÔÔÐ÷ · ¬®»¿¬»¼ ´·µ» ¿²§ ±¬¸»® °¿®¬²»®¸·°ò

Ì¿¨óÛ¨»³°¬ Û²¬·¬·»æ
Ì¸» »²¬·¬§ · »¨»³°¬ º®±³ ¬¿¨ «²¼»® Ý¿´·º±®²·¿ Î»ª»²«» ¿²¼ Ì¿¨¿¬·±² Ý±¼» øÎúÌÝ÷ Í»½¬·±² îíéðï ÁÁÁÁÁÁ ø·²»®¬ ´»¬¬»®÷ ±® 
×²¬»®²¿´ Î»ª»²«» Ý±¼» Í»½¬·±² ëðïø½÷ ÁÁÁÁÁ ø·²»®¬ ²«³¾»®÷ò ×º ¬¸· »²¬·¬§ ½»¿» ¬± ¾» »¨»³°¬ º®±³ ¬¿¨ô × ©·´´ °®±³°¬´§ ²±¬·º§ 
¬¸» ©·¬¸¸±´¼·²¹ ¿¹»²¬ò ×²¼·ª·¼«¿´ ½¿²²±¬ ¾» ¬¿¨ó»¨»³°¬ »²¬·¬·»ò

·²¹ °´¿²ò

Ý¿´·º±®²·¿ Ì®«¬æ

²±¬·º§ ¬¸» ©·¬¸¸±´¼·²¹ ¿¹»²¬ò

× ¿³ ¬¸» »¨»½«¬±® ±º ¬¸» ¿¾±ª»ó²¿³»¼ °»®±²� »¬¿¬» ±® ¬®«¬ò Ì¸» ¼»½»¼»²¬ ©¿ ¿ Ý¿´·º±®²·¿ ®»·¼»²¬ ¿¬ ¬¸» ¬·³» ±º ¼»¿¬¸ò  

 Ò±²³·´·¬¿®§ Í°±«» ±º ¿ Ó·´·¬¿®§ Í»®ª·½»³»³¾»®æ
× ¿³ ¿ ²±²³·´·¬¿®§ °±«» ±º ¿ ³·´·¬¿®§ »®ª·½»³»³¾»® ¿²¼ × ³»»¬ ¬¸» Ó·´·¬¿®§ Í°±«» Î»·¼»²½§ Î»´·»º ß½¬ øÓÍÎÎß÷ 
®»¯«·®»³»²¬ò Í»» ·²¬®«½¬·±² º±® Ù»²»®¿´ ×²º±®³¿¬·±² Ûô ÓÍÎÎßò

ÝÛÎÌ×Ú×ÝßÌÛ ÑÚ ÐßÇÛÛæ Ð¿§»» ³«¬ ½±³°´»¬» ¿²¼ ·¹² ¾»´±©ò

Ì± ´»¿®² ¿¾±«¬ §±«® °®·ª¿½§ ®·¹¸¬ô ¸±© ©» ³¿§ «» §±«® ·²º±®³¿¬·±²ô ¿²¼ ¬¸» ½±²»¯«»²½» º±® ²±¬ °®±ª·¼·²¹ ¬¸» ®»¯«»¬»¼ ·²º±®³¿¬·±²ô 
¹± ¬± º¬¾ò½¿ò¹±ªñº±®³ ¿²¼ »¿®½¸ º±® ïïíïò Ì± ®»¯«»¬ ¬¸· ²±¬·½» ¾§ ³¿·´ô ½¿´´ èððòèëîòëéïïò 

Ë²¼»® °»²¿´¬·» ±º °»®¶«®§ô × ¼»½´¿®» ¬¸¿¬ × ¸¿ª» »¨¿³·²»¼ ¬¸» ·²º±®³¿¬·±² ±² ¬¸· º±®³ô ·²½´«¼·²¹ ¿½½±³°¿²§·²¹ ½¸»¼«´» ¿²¼ 
¬¿¬»³»²¬ô ¿²¼ ¬± ¬¸» ¾»¬ ±º ³§ µ²±©´»¼¹» ¿²¼ ¾»´·»ºô ·¬ · ¬®«»ô ½±®®»½¬ô ¿²¼ ½±³°´»¬»ò × º«®¬¸»® ¼»½´¿®» «²¼»® °»²¿´¬·» ±º °»®¶«®§ ¬¸¿¬ 
·º ¬¸» º¿½¬ «°±² ©¸·½¸ ¬¸· º±®³ ¿®» ¾¿»¼ ½¸¿²¹»ô × ©·´´ °®±³°¬´§ ²±¬·º§ ¬¸» ©·¬¸¸±´¼·²¹ ¿¹»²¬ò

Ì§°» ±® °®·²¬ °¿§»»� ²¿³» ¿²¼ ¬·¬´» ÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁ  Ì»´»°¸±²» øÁÁÁÁÁ÷ÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁ

Ð¿§»»� ·¹²¿¬«®»  

éðêïïèí

Ü¿¬» ÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁÁ

Page 41 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 63 of 133



ATTACHMENT D 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

AND National Academy of Sciences 
FOR THE PROVISION OF 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  
TERM: 

FROM: November 1, 2018 TO: April 30, 2020 
 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or 
employees. 

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering 
CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property 
damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or 
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 
(any auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with 
limit no less   than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory 
Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. 
(Not required if Contractor provides written verification it has no employees) 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Contractor’s 
profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 
aggregate. 

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, the Entity requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits 
maintained by the Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the Entity. 

  

Page 42 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 64 of 133



Other Insurance Provisions 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
Additional Insured Status 

The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional 
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed 
by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form 
of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 
or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). 

  
Primary Coverage 
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the Entity, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

Notice of Cancellation 
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except with 
notice to the Entity. 

Waiver of Subrogation 
Contractor hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said 
Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such 
insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

Self-Insured Retentions 
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. The Entity may require 
the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide, 
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named 
insured or Entity. 

Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a current 
A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity. 

  

Page 43 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 65 of 133



Claims Made Policies 
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis: 

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the 
beginning of contract work. 

2. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least 
five 
(5) years after completion of the contract of work. 

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 
policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor 
must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after 
completion of contract work. 

Verification of Coverage 
Contractor shall furnish the Entity with original Certificates of Insurance including all required 
amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage 
required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy 
listing all policy endorsements to Entity before work begins. However, failure to obtain the 
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to 
provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. 

Subcontractors 
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance 
meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Entity 
is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors. 

Special Risks or Circumstances 
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on 
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 

Page 44 of 44

Agenda Item No. 4 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 66 of 133



Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts (No Action) 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 5 – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Kimberly Mitchell, Research and Systems Analyst II  

Subject: Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts  

 
Summary: 
This Board Report provides a summary of the 2018 smoke impacts from wildfires.  Between June 1, 
2018 and September 30, 2018, the District tracked the progress of 20 fires that either caused smoke 
impacts or had the potential to cause smoke impacts in the communities of Alpine, Mono, and Inyo 
counties.  The District responded to smoke issues in the following ways: 

 Maintained a webpage dedicated to smoke impacts 
 Issued health advisories based on the Air Pollution Episode Plan, District Rule 701 
 Deployed emergency monitors as a part of the Emergency Air Quality Monitoring Program 
 Worked alongside Air Resource Advisors from the interagency Wildland Fire Air Quality 

Response Program 
 Maintained particulate matter (PM) data to utilize for planning efforts and documentation 

 
Smoke Webpage 
This year the District debuted an updated mobile-friendly website including an update to the way 
smoke information is communicated.  The updated smoke page, www.gbuapcd.org/smoke/, is created 
using a background database that is accessible on multiple platforms and can be updated from the 
office, the field or other locations.  The smoke page provides information on active fire incidents and 
monitoring information.  As individual incident pages are added and removed through the season, the 
base page remains a static address for the public and other agencies to visit and link to. The smoke 
webpage was cited and shared as a resource in the press, by the U.S. Forest Service and by members 
of the public during this smoke season.  The goal for each incident page is to summarize pertinent air 
quality information from multiple sources in one location. Information includes a summary of the 
fire’s status, applicable monitoring stations and their data, Air Quality Summary Reports, webcams to 
view air quality in impacted areas, health advisories, and smoke modeling information.  Additionally, 
the homepage now features a Community Air Quality Information sidebar to share qualitative air 
quality conditions.  During heavy smoke impacts in late July and early August 2018, the website was 
receiving over 4,000 unique visitors per day. 
 
  

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 67 of 133



Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts (No Action) 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 5 – Page 2 

Health Advisories 
Based on the criteria in the District’s Air Pollution Episode Plan, District Rule 701, there were 28 
days where health advisories were issued due to smoke (see Table 1.) 
 
Table 1. Health advisories issued due to smoke 

Date County Stage Fire 
June 25, 2018 Mono and Inyo Counties 2, 1 Lions Fire 
June 26, 2018 Mono and Inyo Counties 2, 1 Lions Fire 

July 8, 2018 Inyo County 1 Georges Fire
July 10, 2018 Inyo County 1 Georges Fire
July 15, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson Fire
July 16, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson Fire
July 17, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson Fire
July 24, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson Fire
July 25, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson and Lions Fires
July 27, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson and Lions Fires
July 28, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson and Lions Fires
July 29, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson and Lions Fires
July 30, 2018 Mono County 1 Multiple Fires
July 31, 2018 Mono County 2 Lions Fire 

August 1, 2018 Mono County 1 Lions Fire 
August 2, 2018 Mono and Inyo Counties 2, 2 Ferguson and Lions Fires
August 3, 2018 Mono and Inyo Counties 2, 2 Ferguson and Lions Fires
August 4, 2018 Mono and Inyo Counties 2, 2 Ferguson Fire
August 5, 2018 Mono County 1 Ferguson Fire
August 6, 2018 Alpine, Mono and Inyo Counties 2, 1, 1 Multiple Fires
August 8, 2018 Alpine and Mono Counties 2, 2 Multiple Fires
August 9, 2018 Alpine and Mono Counties 2, 2 Multiple Fires

August 10, 2018 Mono County 1 Donnell and Lions Fires
August 11, 2018 Mono County 1 Donnell and Lions Fires
August 12, 2018 Mono County 1 Donnell Fire 
August 21, 2018 Mono County 1 Donnell and Lions Fires
August 22, 2018 Mono County 1 Donnell and Lions Fires

September 5, 2018 Mono County 2 Boot Fire 
 
Development of Public Health Recommendations for Smoky Conditions 
In June, District Staff reached out to the Dr. Richard Johnson, Alpine County Health Officer; Dr. 
Tom Boo, Mono County Health Officer; and Dr. James Richardson Inyo County Health Officer to 
develop recommendations for smoky conditions and to provide a tailored and consistent message to 
accompany District Health Advisories.  District staff worked with the Health Officers and their staff 
to develop a list of recommendations for smoky conditions.  These guidelines were published in a 
joint press release on July 30, 2018 and are permanently posted on the District’s website.

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 68 of 133



Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts (No Action) 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 5 – Page 3 

Emergency Air Quality Monitoring Program 
The District has started installing monitors (Teledyne T640x) in communities that provide continuous 
PM10 and PM2.5 data, allowing for residents to access live conditions year-round for both criteria 
pollutants.  The new Lee Vining site was installed this past spring and was heavily impacted 
throughout this summer.  The permanent monitor in Mammoth was replaced this fall and Lone Pine 
will be upgraded next.  In addition to the District’s permanent monitoring stations, the District 
deployed two portable particulate matter (PM) monitors, EBAMs, in three locations (see Table 2).  
Two supplementary EBAMs were deployed by the California Air Resource Board (CARB) at the 
request of the District.  Additionally, the U.S. Forest Service (USFS) deployed multiple emergency 
monitors to track PM2.5. 
 
Table 2. Emergency Air Quality Monitoring deployments 
Start 
Date End Date Agency Location Event 
6/12/2018 Current USFS Mammoth Lakes Multiple Fires 
6/25/2018 7/18/2018 GBUAPCD Crowley Lake Multiple Fires 
7/2/2018 10/5/2018 GBUAPCD June Lake Multiple Fires 
7/18/2018 10/5/2018 GBUAPCD Bridgeport Multiple Fires 
8/1/2018 9/10/2018 CARB Woodfords Multiple Fires 
8/2/2018 9/10/2018 USFS Crowley Lake Multiple Fires 
8/6/2018 10/5/2018 CARB  Coleville Multiple Fires 

 
Wildland Fire Air Quality Response Program 
The Wildland Fire Air Quality Response Program was developed by the U.S. Forest Service to 
assess, communicate, and address risks posed by wildland fire smoke.  On larger fire incidents an Air 
Resource Advisor is assigned to a fire or group of fires to produce daily Air Quality Summary 
Reports.  These reports are deployed via social media, through InciWeb, through local air districts, 
and if appropriate are posted on bulletins in local communities.  The District was in communication 
with Air Resource Advisors for incidents that impacted Alpine, Mono, and/or Inyo County 
communities.  The Air Resource Advisors were very receptive to the District’s requests, which 
included adding communities, deploying monitors in specific areas, and updating reporting methods 
when errors were discovered. District staff called in to daily smoke update phone meetings.  Air 
Quality Summary Reports covering one or more of the District’s communities were issued for three 
fires (Donnell, Ferguson, and Lions) and covered 55 days this season.  These reports were added to 
the District’s website, www.gbuapcd.org daily.  For more information on the Wildland Fire Air 
Quality Response Program visit http://www.wildlandfiresmoke.net/.  
 
Particulate Matter (PM) Data 
The District reviews and maintains a record of PM2.5 and PM10 data from both permanent and 
emergency monitors.  Between June 1, 2018 and September 30, 2018 there were ten days where the 
worst air quality in the three counties was ‘unhealthy’ for sensitive groups (USG).  There were 
fourteen days where the worst air quality was ‘unhealthy’.  There were six days where the worst air 
quality was ‘very unhealthy.’  There were no ‘hazardous’ days recorded at monitors in the three 
counties this wildfire season.  A summary of conditions for the smoke season can be seen in Table 3 
and a more detailed report of the 2018 Fire Season 24 Hour PM10 and PM2.5 Community 
Concentrations can be found as Attachment 2. 
 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 69 of 133



Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts (No Action) 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 5 – Page 4 

Table 3.  

Site 

Number of Days in Air Quality Index Categories 
(If a site has a PM2.5 & PM10 monitors worse AQI was counted for the day) 

Good Moderate USG Unhealthy 
Very 

Unhealthy
Hazardous 

No Data 
Available 

Woodfords 24 11 1 3 1 0 82 

Coleville 31 13 5 4 2 0 67 
Bridgeport 48 15 5 6 0 0 48 
Lee Vining 79 21 8 9 2 0 3 
June Lake 52 22 9 6 1 0 32 
Mammoth 

Lakes 
74 31 5 8 2 0 2 

Crowley Lake 35 17 2 3 1 0 64 
Bishop 89 24 3 5 1 0 0 

Lone Pine 103 16 1 2 0 0 0 
Keeler 99 22 0 1 0 0 0 

Olancha 119 3 0 0 0 0 0 
Coso Junction 119 3 0 0 0 0 0 
 
Additional Public Outreach 
District staff have been involved in additional activities in support of public outreach including: 

 Fielding questions through phone calls and emails to from residents, visitors, businesses, 
Board members, news media and other agencies regarding smoke and air quality  

 Working with neighboring air districts and other partners, such as the National Weather 
Service in Reno, to coordinate and consult on air quality alerts  

 Participating in daily CARB Smoke Air Monitoring Conference calls to coordinate 
monitoring activities between the state, air districts, USFS and National Park Service  

 Attending and speaking at meetings including Community Meetings for the Lions Fire in 
Mammoth Lakes on June 28 and July 31, 2018, a Mono County Board of Supervisor’s 
meeting on August 7, 2018 and at an Eastern Sierra Public Information Officers Meeting in 
Mammoth Lakes on August 8, 2018 
 

Future Projects 
The District is beginning to implement the installation of permanent low-cost air quality sensors 
(Purple Air) throughout Inyo, Mono and Alpine counties to provide air quality data to communities 
without permanent regulatory monitors.  
    
Board Action:   None.  Information only. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Slideshow presentation, “Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts” 
2. 2018 Fire Season 24 Hour PM10 and PM2.5 Community Concentrations 
3. Useful Websites for Smoke and Dust Events 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 70 of 133



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 2
01

8 
W

ild
fir

e 
Sm

ok
e 

Im
pa

ct
s

Ki
m

be
rly

 M
itc

he
ll

G
re

at
 B

as
in

 U
ni

fie
d

 A
ir 

Po
llu

tio
n 

C
on

tro
l D

ist
ric

t
Re

se
ar

ch
 &

 S
ys

te
m

s A
na

ly
st

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 71 of 133




Be

tw
ee

n 
Ju

ne
 1

st
an

d
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 3
0t

h , 
20

18
 2

0 
fir

es
 w

er
e 

tra
ck

ed
 fo

r s
m

ok
e 

im
pa

ct
s


Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
5 

fir
es

 th
at

 c
au

se
d

 a
 H

ea
lth

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 to

 b
e 

iss
ue

d
 in

 
In

yo
, M

on
o,

 a
nd

/o
r A

lp
in

e 
C

ou
nt

ie
s


Lio

ns
 F

ire
 –

13
,3

47
 a

cr
es

 –
7 

m
ile

s s
ou

th
w

es
t o

f M
a

m
m

ot
h 

La
ke

s


G

eo
rg

es
 F

ire
 –

2,
88

3 
a

cr
es

 –
w

es
t o

f M
a

nz
a

na
r


Fe

rg
us

on
 F

ire
–

96
,9

01
 a

cr
es

 –
Si

er
ra

 N
a

tio
na

l F
or

es
t &

 Y
os

em
ite

 
N

a
tio

na
l P

a
rk


Do

nn
el

l F
ire

 –
36

,4
50

 a
cr

es
 –

St
a

ni
sla

us
 N

a
tio

na
l F

or
es

t


Bo

ot
 F

ire
 –

6,
97

4 
a

cr
es

 –
9 

m
ile

s s
ou

th
 o

f W
a

lk
er

Sm
ok

e 
Ev

en
ts

Sm
ok

e 
Ev

en
ts

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 72 of 133



He
al

th
A

dv
iso

rie
s

Da
te

C
ou

nt
y

St
ag

e
Fi

re
6/

25
/2

01
8

M
on

o 
a

nd
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

ie
s

2,
 1

Li
on

s F
ire

6/
26

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

a
nd

 In
yo

 C
ou

nt
ie

s
2,

 1
Li

on
s F

ire
7/

8/
20

18
In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y
1

G
eo

rg
es

 F
ire

7/
10

/2
01

8
In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y
1

G
eo

rg
es

 F
ire

7/
15

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
Fe

rg
us

on
 F

ire
7/

16
/2

01
8

M
on

o 
C

ou
nt

y
1

Fe
rg

us
on

 F
ire

7/
17

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
Fe

rg
us

on
 F

ire
7/

24
/2

01
8

M
on

o 
C

ou
nt

y
1

Fe
rg

us
on

 F
ire

7/
25

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
Fe

rg
us

on
 a

nd
 L

io
ns

 
Fi

re
s

7/
27

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
Fe

rg
us

on
 a

nd
 L

io
ns

 
Fi

re
s

7/
28

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
Fe

rg
us

on
 a

nd
 L

io
ns

 
Fi

re
s

7/
29

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
Fe

rg
us

on
 a

nd
 L

io
ns

 
Fi

re
s

7/
30

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
M

ul
tip

le
 F

ire
s

7/
31

/2
01

8
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

2
Li

on
s F

ire
8/

1/
20

18
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
Li

on
s F

ire

8/
2/

20
18

M
on

o 
a

nd
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

ie
s

2,
 2

Fe
rg

us
on

 a
nd

 L
io

ns
 

Fi
re

s

8/
3/

20
18

M
on

o 
a

nd
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

ie
s

2,
 2

Fe
rg

us
on

 a
nd

 L
io

ns
 

Fi
re

s
8/

4/
20

18
M

on
o 

a
nd

 In
yo

 C
ou

nt
ie

s
2,

 2
Fe

rg
us

on
 F

ire
8/

5/
20

18
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

1
Fe

rg
us

on
 F

ire
8/

6/
20

18
A

lp
in

e,
 M

on
o 

a
nd

 In
yo

 C
ou

nt
ie

s
2,

 1
, 1

M
ul

tip
le

 F
ire

s
8/

8/
20

18
A

lp
in

e 
a

nd
 M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
ie

s
2,

 2
M

ul
tip

le
 F

ire
s

8/
9/

20
18

A
lp

in
e 

a
nd

 M
on

o 
C

ou
nt

ie
s

2,
 2

M
ul

tip
le

 F
ire

s
8/

10
/2

01
8

M
on

o 
C

ou
nt

y
1

D
on

ne
ll a

nd
 L

io
ns

 F
ire

s
8/

11
/2

01
8

M
on

o 
C

ou
nt

y
1

D
on

ne
ll a

nd
 L

io
ns

 F
ire

s
8/

12
/2

01
8

M
on

o 
C

ou
nt

y
1

D
on

ne
ll F

ire
8/

21
/2

01
8

M
on

o 
C

ou
nt

y
1

D
on

ne
ll a

nd
 L

io
ns

 F
ire

s
8/

22
/2

01
8

M
on

o 
C

ou
nt

y
1

D
on

ne
ll a

nd
 L

io
ns

 F
ire

s
9/

5/
20

18
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y

2
Bo

ot
 F

ire

A
le

rts
He

al
th

 A
d

vi
so

rie
s w

er
e 

iss
ue

d
on

 2
8 

d
ay

s

61
4 

ho
ur

ly
 H

ea
lth

 A
d

vi
so

rie
s 

w
er

e 
pu

sh
ed

 to
 

w
w

w
.g

bu
ap

cd
.o

rg

H
ea

lth
 

A
d

vi
so

rie
s

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 73 of 133



He
al

th
 A

d
vi

so
rie

s
Si

gn
 u

p 
at

: h
ttp

s:/
/w

w
w

.g
b

ua
pc

d
.o

rg
/c

gi
-b

in
/A

d
vi

so
ry

Si
gn

Up
/F

or
m

H
ea

lth
 

A
d

vi
so

rie
s

Su
bs

cr
ib

er
s

Em
ai

l: 
36

6
Te

xt
: 1

71

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 74 of 133



Up
d

at
ed

 S
m

ok
e 

W
eb

pa
ge

ht
tp

s:/
/w

w
w

.g
bu

ap
cd

.o
rg

/s
m

ok
e/

W
eb

sit
e

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 75 of 133



Em
er

ge
nc

y 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y
M

on
ito

rin
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

Da
te

s
A

ge
nc

y
Lo

ca
tio

n
Ev

en
t

6/
12

/2
01

8 
-

C
ur

re
nt

US
FS

M
am

m
ot

h 
La

ke
s

M
ul

tip
le

 F
ire

s

6/
25

/2
01

8 
–

7/
18

/2
01

8
G

BU
A

PC
D

C
ro

w
le

y 
La

ke
M

ul
tip

le
 F

ire
s

7/
2/

20
18

 –
10

/5
/2

01
8

G
BU

A
PC

D
Ju

ne
 L

ak
e

M
ul

tip
le

 F
ire

s

7/
18

/2
01

8 
–

10
/5

/2
01

8
G

BU
A

PC
D

Br
id

ge
po

rt
M

ul
tip

le
 F

ire
s

8/
1/

20
18

 –
9/

10
/2

01
8

C
A

RB
W

oo
d

fo
rd

s
M

ul
tip

le
 F

ire
s

8/
2/

20
18

 –
9/

10
/2

01
8

US
FS

C
ro

w
le

y 
La

ke
M

ul
tip

le
 F

ire
s

8/
6/

20
18

 –
10

/5
/2

01
8

C
A

RB
 

C
ol

ev
ille

M
ul

tip
le

 F
ire

s

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
M

on
ito

rin
g

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 76 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
A

lp
in

e 
C

ou
nt

y:
 J

un
e 

1 
–

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8

20
%

9%

1% 2% 1%

67
%

W
oo

df
or

ds
 (E

BA
M

) D
ai

ly
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 77 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y:

 J
un

e 
1 

–
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
8

25
% 11

%

4%

3%
2%

55
%

Co
le

vi
lle

 (E
BA

M
) D

ai
ly

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 78 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y:

 J
un

e 
1 

–
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
8

40
%

12
%

4%
5%

0%

39
%

Br
id

ge
po

rt
 (E

BA
M

) D
ai

ly
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 79 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y:

 J
un

e 
1 

–
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
8

65
%

17
%

7%

7%

2%
2%

Le
e 

Vi
ni

ng
 D

ai
ly

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 80 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y:

 J
un

e 
1 

–
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
8

43
%

18
%

7%

5%

1%

26
%

Ju
ne

 L
ak

e 
(E

BA
M

) D
ai

ly
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 81 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y:

 J
un

e 
1 

–
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
8

61
%

25
%

4%

6%
2%

2%

M
am

m
ot

h 
La

ke
s D

ai
ly

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 82 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
M

on
o 

C
ou

nt
y:

 J
un

e 
1 

–
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
8

29
%

14
% 2%

2%
1%

52
%

Cr
ow

le
y 

La
ke

 (E
BA

M
) D

ai
ly

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y Go

od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 83 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y:
 J

un
e 

1 
–

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8

73
%

20
%

2%
4%

1%
Bi

sh
op

 D
ai

ly
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 84 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y:
 J

un
e 

1 
–

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8

84
%

13
%1%

2%
Lo

ne
 P

in
e 

D
ai

ly
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 85 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y:
 J

un
e 

1 
–

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8

81
%

18
%

1%
Ke

el
er

 D
ai

ly
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 86 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y:
 J

un
e 

1 
–

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8

98
%

2%O
la

nc
ha

 D
ai

ly
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 87 of 133



Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r D
at

a
In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y:
 J

un
e 

1 
–

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8

98
%

2%

Co
so

 Ju
nc

tio
n 

D
ai

ly
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y

Go
od

M
od

er
at

e

U
nh

ea
lth

y 
fo

r S
en

sit
iv

e 
Gr

ou
ps

U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ve
ry

 U
nh

ea
lth

y

Ha
za

rd
ou

s

N
o 

Da
ta

D
at

a

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 88 of 133



Lo
w

 C
os

t A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

Se
ns

or
s

w
w

w
.p

ur
pl

ea
ir.

co
m

/m
a

p

N
ew

 
Pr

oj
ec

ts


Th

e 
D

ist
ric

t i
s p

re
pa

rin
g 

to
 d

ep
lo

y 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

30
 lo

w
 

co
st

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 se

ns
or

s 
(P

ur
pl

e 
A

ir)


Th

e 
se

ns
or

s w
ill 

be
 

d
ep

lo
ye

d
 in

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 to

 fi
ll i

n 
ga

ps
 in

 th
e 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ne
tw

or
k

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 89 of 133



N
ew

 M
on

ito
rs

N
ew

 
Pr

oj
ec

ts


Th

e 
D

ist
ric

t i
s i

n 
th

e 
p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f c
on

ve
rti

ng
 c

om
m

un
ity

 si
te

s 
to

 T
64

0x
 m

on
ito

rs


C
om

pl
et

e


Bi

sh
op

: O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

7


Le

e 
V

in
in

g:
 A

p
ril

 2
01

8


M

a
m

m
ot

h 
La

ke
s: 

Se
p

te
m

b
er

 2
01

8


In

 P
ro

gr
es

s


Ke

el
er

: E
xp

ec
te

d
 c

om
p

le
tio

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
8


Lo

ne
 P

in
e:

 E
xp

ec
te

d
 c

om
p

le
tio

n 
N

ov
em

b
er

 2
01

8


Pl

an
ne

d


O

la
nc

ha


C

os
o 

Ju
nc

tio
n


Th

e 
T6

40
x 

m
on

ito
rs

 P
M

10
 a

nd
 P

M
2.

5 
sim

ul
ta

ne
ou

sly

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 90 of 133



W
oo

df
or

ds

C
ol

ev
il

le

B
ri

dg
ep

or
t

Ju
ne

 L
ak

e

C
ro

w
le

y 
L

ak
e

O
la

nc
ha

C
os

o 
Ju

nc
ti

on

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5(
*)

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5*

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
10

6/1/18    12 4  3   24 5 15 6 16 6 16 23

6/2/18    12 4  6   27 5 13 6 12 4 13 17

6/3/18    14 5  8   23 5 17  15 7 16 18

6/4/18    11 3  7   25 6 26  18 8 22 24

6/5/18    11 4  9   26 5 22 7 23 9 24 29

6/6/18    16 5  14   31 7 26 6 13 6 23 26

6/7/18    17 6  15   28 7 24 8 19 9 26 30

6/8/18    18 7  17   31 8 24 10 20 12 24 29

6/9/18       21   41 6 22 8 40 13 31 33

6/10/18       4   31 4 19 6 24 8 19 22

6/11/18       13   30 5 24 5 22 7 25 28

6/12/18    15 4  10   28 5 23 5 21 7 24 31

6/13/18    15 4  15 9  29 5 24 6 21 9 25 29

6/14/18    13 4  16 8  28 6 22 7 18 7 23 27

6/15/18    16 4  15 7  31 5 22  18 5 21 26

6/16/18    16 4  18 7  35 5 28 5 20 6 31 29

6/17/18    15 4  15 5  32 6 28 7 32 7 28 27

6/18/18    13 4  11 7  18 4 17  16 6 18 21

6/19/18    12 4  13 8  23 5 15  14 5 17 20

6/20/18    12 4  15 9  23 4 16  14 5 16 19

6/21/18    8 2  3 5  20 3 11 4 11 3 12 15

6/22/18    10 3  12 13  23 4 15 5 13 5 16 19

6/23/18    13 4  30 25  29 5 18 6 18 6 20 23

6/24/18    21 9  51 25  29 11 18 6 17 6 18 25

2:M, 1:I 6/25/18    45 26  145 97  75 44 30 13 25 10 30 35

2:M, 1:I 6/26/18    66 43  117 62 73 56 27 23 9 23 10 26 32

6/27/18    25 11  35 23 24 45 13 25 9 24 11 27 36

6/28/18    14 4  30 14 9 27 6 16 6 18 7 17 25

6/29/18    13 4  23 17 7 28 5 21  20 8 21 25

6/30/18    12 3  25 17 7 24 4 15 5 14 5 15 22

7/1/18    15 5  17 13 6 26 7 16 6 16 7 15 20

7/2/18    18 6  23 13 12 34 8 25 9 22 10 23 26

7/3/18    44 24 22 36 22 25 44 16 27 10 26 14 31 32

7/4/18    26 11 11 24 13 14 56 14 31 12 22 12 30 32

7/5/18    10 3 5 10 11 7 28 7 16 7 14 6 17 19

7/6/18    10 3 4 8 9 7 23 5 18 7 18 7 18 22

7/7/18    20 5 7 22 8 7 37 8 25 9 26 10 30 36

1:I 7/8/18    25 6 7 21  8 42 9 30 13 36 15 32 37

7/9/18    12 4 5 9  6 31 7 24 10 25 11 25 31

1:I 7/10/18    16 4 6 20  9 87 12 58 16 57 15 61 61

7/11/18    39 8 11 44  9 35 8 27 11 27 9 39 41

7/12/18    18 6 6   8 26 8 24  21 7 26 37

7/13/18    14 6 5 13  7 15 7 12  8 5 10 16

7/14/18    14 6 7 11  9 18 7 12 6 13 9 15 22

1:M 7/15/18    57 35 9 11 13 9 22 7 19 7 19 9 21 27Fe
rg

us
on

L
io

ns
 F

ir
e 

- 
13

, 3
47

 a
cr

es

G
eo

rg
es

 F
ir

e 
- 

2,
88

3 
ac

re
s

Smoke Events
(w/ monitored 

impacts)

K
ee

le
r

Date L
ee

 V
in

in
g

M
am

m
ot

h

B
is

ho
p

L
on

e 
P

in
e

H
ea

lt
h 

A
dv

is
or

y

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 2
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 91 of 133



W
oo

df
or

ds

C
ol

ev
il

le

B
ri

dg
ep

or
t

Ju
ne

 L
ak

e

C
ro

w
le

y 
L

ak
e

O
la

nc
ha

C
os

o 
Ju

nc
ti

on

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5(
*)

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5*

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
10

Smoke Events
(w/ monitored 

impacts)

K
ee

le
r

Date L
ee

 V
in

in
g

M
am

m
ot

h

B
is

ho
p

L
on

e 
P

in
e

H
ea

lt
h 

A
dv

is
or

y

1:M 7/16/18    56 33 17 19 22 14 25 10 21 9 21 10 22 26

1:M 7/17/18    72 44 22 27 29 15 29 12 21 10 20 10 22 29

7/18/18    81 49 37 51 41  42 17 25 11 25 13 31 32

7/19/18   30 62 34 14 25 27  31 10 23 10 25 11 26 30

7/20/18   16 26 14 12 14 24  26 7 25 9 39 12 31 37

7/21/18   19 37 24 14 20 26  24 10 16 8 17 9 15 21

7/22/18   21 36 23 12 8 13  26 9 15 7 18 6 19 24

7/23/18   9 16 9 8 8 14  18 7 13 7 12 5 12 16

1:M 7/24/18   15 48 30 17 19 26  23 9 14 7 14 8 13 19

1:M 7/25/18   26 42 26 21 46 42  34 17 21 12 20 11 18 21

7/26/18   7 21 11 8 14 19  29 13 17 10 20 11 18 20

1:M 7/27/18   18 70 45 45  58  48 25 21 11 20 12 20 24

1:M 7/28/18   33 154 99 57  67  102 65 50 33 36 25 38 36

1:M 7/29/18   57 136 86 63  85  100 63 49 34 36 29 42 40

1:M 7/30/18   52 104 66 49  39  82 48 36 23 26 21 34 36

2:M 7/31/18   37 79 50 46 152 98  58 30 34 18 26 17 31 36

1:M 8/1/18   31 68 45 88 72 53  42 23 30 18 34 23 28 34

2:IM 8/2/18 17  71 230 144 165 298 222  112 76 24 15 19 15 23 27

2:IM 8/3/18 45  34 302 195 144 262 208 154 353 248 103 70 42 34 43 32

2:IM 8/4/18 33  19 158 107 84 181 134 88 211 144 97 74 79 83 82 71

1:M 8/5/18 29  119 226 155 31 30 32 33 51 34 30 21 32 25 16 17

2:A, 1:IM 8/6/18 179  80 178 117 58 85 71 74 135 93 58 44 39 35 55 56

8/7/18 56 99 40 84 51 28 69 48 37 68 40 32 22 31 25 33 40

2:AM 8/8/18 76 185 55 102 63 36 47 34 49 56 31 26 15 23 14 29 32

2:AM 8/9/18 144 138 46 101 63 41 61 35 33 55 28 29 14 25 16 33 35

1:M 8/10/18 11 54 79 74 47 15 50 30 26 48 22 40 16 35 20 40 46

1:M 8/11/18 31 107 73 109 72 26 41 33 22 54 24 42 20 43 25 43 46

1:M 8/12/18 22 58 29 46 27 21 33 19 22 62 24 43 16 56 21 39 41

8/13/18 31 44 24 36 22 17 33 14 19 42 19 28 11 28 16 29 32

8/14/18 32 32 21 28 16 12 22 12 11 27 10 19 8 18 8 21 26

8/15/18 10 29 7 23 11 22 20 7 12 23 8 16 8 18 8 21 28

8/16/18 25 32 10 28 14 28 26 13 18 32 11 23 11 31 10 30 40

8/17/18 6 22 9 33 16 28 23 11 21 43 15 28 9 29 10 31 36

8/18/18 5 42 11 26 12 23 18 20  57 26 26 11 28 11 28 32

8/19/18 14 23 12 37 20 52 6 6  31 11 18 8 17 7 18 23

8/20/18 5 47 8 45 25 18 10 8 10 24 7 13 6 13 4 13 38

1:M 8/21/18 8 33 10 34 15 36 12 11 17 37 15 16 6 15 4 15 20

1:M 8/22/18 17 24 10 38 18 49 13 13 13 39 16 17 8 14 6 15 25

8/23/18 9 17 10 36 16 14 11 6 15 40 17 19 8 17 7 23 26

8/24/18 5 15 8 24 10 13  5 6 30 9 23 8 23 8 27 28

8/25/18 10 17 9 21 10 8  9 10 30 10 24 11 26 12 30 31

8/26/18 8 16 9 20 8 9 5 6 11 33 11 24 10 24 13 30 29

8/27/18 6 11 8 27 11 8 4 6 8 24 8 19 9 20 10 19 27

8/28/18 7 10 11 36 16 13 16 7 12 38 16 24 10 21 9 24 25

8/29/18 4 7 8 22 8 7 6 4 8 30 8 18 4 18 6 22 26

8/30/18 1 3 4 13 4 4  2 5 20 5 14  13  15 16

8/31/18 2 4 6 13 5 3  7 5 25 5 20  15 4 19 25

L
io

ns
 F

ir
e 

- 
13

, 3
47

 a
cr

es

D
on

ne
ll

 F
ir

e 
- 

36
,4

50
 a

cr
es

G
eo

rg
es

Fe
rg

us
on

 F
ir

e 
- 

96
,9

01
 a

cr
es

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 2
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 92 of 133



W
oo

df
or

ds

C
ol

ev
il

le

B
ri

dg
ep

or
t

Ju
ne

 L
ak

e

C
ro

w
le

y 
L

ak
e

O
la

nc
ha

C
os

o 
Ju

nc
ti

on

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5*

PM
2.

5(
*)

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
2.

5*

PM
10

PM
2.

5

PM
10

PM
10

Smoke Events
(w/ monitored 

impacts)

K
ee

le
r

Date L
ee

 V
in

in
g

M
am

m
ot

h

B
is

ho
p

L
on

e 
P

in
e

H
ea

lt
h 

A
dv

is
or

y

9/1/18 7 8 9 22 10 7 13 12 8 30 10 17  15 6 18 17

9/2/18 5 7 8 22 9 7 10 10 8 28 9 19  18 6 20 23

9/3/18 4 8 9 22 9 7 7 10 10 34 7 26  32 9 25 27

9/4/18 10 47 8 18 7 5 17 6 7 26 6 22  30 8 28 34

2:M 9/5/18 24 185 21 20 8 9 15 6 9 20 6 12  12 3 10 15

9/6/18 5 24 11 28 12 9 15 6 10 24 9 12  11 5 12 15

9/7/18 2 11 7 24 8 7 13 6 8 23 6 13  12 4 14 19

9/8/18 1 7 4 17 5 4 1 4 4 22 5 14  17 4 19 21

9/9/18 0 9 4 12 3 4  5 4 19 4 13  13 4 12 17

9/10/18 2 8 4 13 4 4  2  21 5 15  17 5 16 20

9/11/18  4 3 12 4 3    19 5 22  19 6 20 27

9/12/18  4 2 11 1 2  2  12 2 11  12 3 10 14

9/13/18  4 3 12 2 3  4  16 2 19  15 2 12 13

9/14/18  4 3 8 1 2  1  16 2 12  9 2 22 15

9/15/18  4 4 12 2 4  2  19 3 24 6 10 2 14 17

9/16/18  4 4 13 3 4  3  21 4 15 5 12 3 15 22

9/17/18  3 3 14 3 4  4  21 4 12 5 16 2 13 17

9/18/18  4 3 13 3 3  5  20 4 12 4 14  14 18

9/19/18  3 4 11 3 3  3  17 3 12 5 14 3 17 22

9/20/18  5 5 16 5 4  5  19 5 15 6 15 3 15 17

9/21/18  8 7 23 6 5  6  30 5 21 6 23 5 25 28

9/22/18  7 6 23 6 4  2  27 5 17  19 5 20 21

9/23/18  6 4 17 4 4  4  20 4 13  16 7 14 15

9/24/18  13 5 17 4 4  5  21 5 14  14 3 14 17

9/25/18  2 4 17 4 3  3  21 4 15  15 3 15 15

9/26/18  4 4 14 3 3  5  21 4 13  14 3 17 14

9/27/18  4 6 14 4 4  4  17 3 11  14 3 14 14

9/28/18  5 8 15 4 6  5  25 4 16 5 14 2 22 23

9/29/18  9 3 23 3 5  6  33 4 31 8 20 3 22 24

9/30/18  3 4 9 2 3  3  15 3 17 7 9 2 15 18

 

B
oo

t F
ir

e 
- 

6,
97

4 
ac

re
s

L
io

ns
 F

ir
e 

- 
13

, 3
47

 a
cr

es

D
on

ne
ll

 F
ir

e 
- 

36
,4

50
 a

cr
es

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 2
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 93 of 133



24 Hour 
Average 
PM2.5 

Concentration

24 Hour 
Average PM10 
Concentration Health Advisory Statement

Good 0 to 12.4 0 to 54.0 None

Moderate 12.5 to 35.4 54.1 to 154.0
Unusually sensitive people should consider reducing prolonged or 
heavy exertion.

Unhealthy for 
Sensitive 

Groups (USG) 35.5 to 55.4 154.1 to 254.0

People with heart or lung disease, older adults and children should 
reduce prolonged or heavy exertion. The general public is not likely 
to be affected.

Unhealthy 55.5 to 150.4 254.1 to 354.0

Everyone may begin to experience health effects; people with heart 
or lung disease, older adults, and children should avoid prolonged 
or heavy exertion.

Very Unhealthy 150.5 to 250.4 354.1 to 424.0

People with heart or lung disease, older adults, and children should 
avoid all physical activity outdoors. Everyone else should avoid 
prolonged or heavy exertion.

Hazardous > 250.5 >424.1

Everyone should avoid any outdoor exertion; people with 
respiratory or heart disease, the elderly and children should remain 
indoors.

A: Alpine County
M: Mono County
I: Inyo County
1: Level 1 Health Advisory
2: Level 2 Health Advisory

*: Not GBUAPCD Monitor
Data is preliminary and may not be fully validated

Air Quality Index (AQI)

Health Advisory Codes:

Other Information:

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 2
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 94 of 133



Great Basin Unified 
Air Pollution Control District 

 
 
 
 
 
 

USEFUL WEBSITES FOR SMOKE AND DUST EVENTS 

 
Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Websites 

 
• Community Air Quality Conditions: https://www.gbuapcd.org 
• All GBUAPCD Air Quality Conditions: 

https://www.gbuapcd.org/AirMonitoringData/CurrentConditions 
• Air Quality Cameras: https://www.gbuapcd.org/cgi-bin/cameraViewer 
• Recommendations for Wildfire Smoke: 

https://www.gbuapcd.org/AirMonitoringData/Smoke/smokyConditionsRecs.html 
• Information about Health Advisories: 

https://www.gbuapcd.org/AirMonitoringData/HealthAdvisories/ 
 
 
 
 
 

Other Websites 
 

• 72 hour smoke predictions (US Forest Service’s BlueSky Daily Run): 
https://haze.airfire.org/websky/v1/run/standard/CANSAC-2km/current/#viewer 

• AirNow Current Fire Conditions: https://airnow.gov/air-quality-and-health/fires/current-
fires 

• California Smoke Information: http://californiasmokeinfo.blogspot.com/ 
• Current Federal Fire Information (InciWeb): https://inciweb.nwcg.gov/ 
• Purple Air Sensor Data: https://www.purpleair.com/map#7/37.836/-118.16 
• Smoke Monitoring (EBAM monitors): 

https://tools.airfire.org/monitoring/v4/#!/?category=PM2.5_nowcast&centerlat=37.649&ce
nterlon=-118.0371&zoom=7 

• Wildland Fire Air Quality Response Program: https://sites.google.com/firenet.gov/wfaqrp-
external/air-resource-advisors/deployments 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item No. 5 - Attachment 3
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 95 of 133

https://www.gbuapcd.org/
https://www.gbuapcd.org/AirMonitoringData/CurrentConditions
https://www.gbuapcd.org/cgi-bin/cameraViewer
https://www.gbuapcd.org/AirMonitoringData/Smoke/smokyConditionsRecs.html
https://www.gbuapcd.org/AirMonitoringData/HealthAdvisories/
https://haze.airfire.org/websky/v1/run/standard/CANSAC-2km/current/#viewer
https://airnow.gov/air-quality-and-health/fires/current-fires
https://airnow.gov/air-quality-and-health/fires/current-fires
http://californiasmokeinfo.blogspot.com/
https://inciweb.nwcg.gov/
https://www.purpleair.com/map#7/37.836/-118.16
https://tools.airfire.org/monitoring/v4/#!/?category=PM2.5_nowcast&centerlat=37.649&centerlon=-118.0371&zoom=7
https://tools.airfire.org/monitoring/v4/#!/?category=PM2.5_nowcast&centerlat=37.649&centerlon=-118.0371&zoom=7
https://sites.google.com/firenet.gov/wfaqrp-external/air-resource-advisors/deployments
https://sites.google.com/firenet.gov/wfaqrp-external/air-resource-advisors/deployments


Informational Items (No Action) – Travel Report  
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6a – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 

Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018    

To:              Governing Board  

From: Tori DeHaven, Clerk of the Board  

Subject: Travel Report  

 
Summary: 
Chris Howard  Sept. 11 – 14 Air Sensors International Conference  Oakland, CA 
Christine Holt 
 
Susan Cash  Sept. 24 Insurance Administration, Review  Sacramento, CA 
     And Risk Transfer 
 
Susan Cash  Sept. 27 Overview of Public Sector Exposure  Ontario, CA 
     And Risk Management 
 
Kim Mitchell  Oct. 9 – 11 PQAO Training Curriculum Advisory  Davis, CA 
Chris Lanane    Committee Meeting 
 
Susan Cash  Oct. 15  Property & Liability Claims,   Sacramento, CA 
     Safety & Loss Control 
 
Patty Gilpin  Oct. 21 – 25 CalPERS Educational Forum   Indian Wells, CA 
 
Susan Cash  Oct. 21  California Special District Association Lake Tahoe, CA 
     Preconference E-Records Workshop 
 
Susan Cash  Oct. 22 – 24 California Special District Association Lake Tahoe, CA 
     Board Secretary/Clerk Conference    
 
Susan Cash  Oct. 25 – 26 California Air Pollution Control Officer’s Monterey, CA 
     Association Fiscal Managers Fall Meeting 
 
Ann Logan  Oct. 29 – 31 California Air Pollution Control Officer’s Folsom, CA 
     Association 2018 Engineering & Toxics 
     Symposium and Managers Meeting 
 
Board Action:  
None.  Informational only. 
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 96 of 133



Informational Items (No Action) – Air Sensors International Conference Report Travel report 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6.a.i – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Chris Howard, Senior Research and Systems Analyst 
Christine Holt, Air Monitoring Technician 
 

 

Subject: Air Sensors International Conference Travel Report  

 
Summary: 
The University of California Davis Air Quality Research Center organized the first Air Sensors 
International Conference in Oakland, California September 12-14, 2018.  The conference brought 
together government agencies, researchers, industry members, community scientists and educators to 
help move that mission forward with air sensor technology.  District staff, Chris Howard and 
Christine Holt, attended.  The goal of the conference was to educate air quality managers on the use 
of and deployment considerations for low-cost air quality sensors.  
 
The District received a grant from the California Air Resources Board to purchase and deploy Purple 
Air Particulate Matter (PM) sensors throughout Inyo, Mono, and Alpine Counites.  The goal for 
District staff attending the conference was to understand how air sensors respond during ambient air 
quality issues in the Eastern Sierra, primarily wildfire smoke and windblown dust, and how to 
interpret the data reported by air sensors especially as it pertains to air quality health impacts and 
advisories.  
 
The conference was attended by over 500 people comprised by a mix of government, community 
members, industry, and vendors.  There were daily plenary sessions followed by concurrent sessions 
focused on a variety of topics ranging from Citizen Science, Data Sharing, Regulations and 
Performance Standards.  The largest topic of discussion centered on how low-cost sensors relate to 
reference method air quality monitors and how the sensor data be used to inform decisions.  Since 
sensors are a relatively new technology, there were many presentations and posters exploring sensor-
monitor PM correlations.  Most results indicate that sensors generally report PM levels 30% to 100% 
higher than reference method PM monitors.  Notably, the research presented indicate PM sensors do 
a good job of sensing wildfire smoke (though overestimated), but do not accurately measure 
windblown dust, presumably because of sheer and the limited air intake of sensors. 
  

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 97 of 133



Informational Items (No Action) – Air Sensors International Conference Report Travel report 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6.a.i – Page 2 

 
Representatives from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) recommended the District use 
sensor data as informational and suggest if the data is incorporated into a health advisory program, to 
ensure the text of health advisories to note the source.  Also, when relying on sensor data for issuing 
health advisories, the EPA suggested communities use the visibility guidelines in conjunction with 
the sensor data. 
 
In summary, EPA recommends sensor data should complement, not replace or supersede, regulatory 
data:  

 Sensor data are not to be used for regulatory decisions.  
 Sensors are appropriate for personal activity guidance.  
 EPA needs to develop sensor quality assurance guidelines. 
 EPA will promote data quality and develop tools 

 
The conference allowed for networking with representatives from other air districts implementing 
sensors.  Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District were particularly helpful with sharing 
their experiences and documentation of their program and installing ten Purple Air sensors in 
summer 2018.  
 
Attendees at the conference noted the excitement, interest, and energy present.  Local districts are 
already being presented with opportunities and challenges regarding this new paradigm.  Although 
low cost sensors will not replace current regulatory monitoring methods, the new generation of air 
quality sensors should continue to improve in performance, decrease in cost, and will certainly affect 
the way the public and regulatory agencies approach air quality monitoring in the future. 
 
Board Action:   
None.  Information only. 
 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 98 of 133



 
Informational Items (No Action) - Travel Report: EPA National Ambient Air Monitoring Conference 

November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6.a.ii – Page 1 of 2 
  

          

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018    

To:              Governing Board  

From: Alex Clayton, Air Monitoring Technical Specialist  

Subject: EPA National Ambient Air Monitoring Conference Travel Report  

 
Summary: 
The biennial Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) National Ambient Air Monitoring Conference is 
designed for state, local, and tribal agency staff responsible for ambient air monitoring.  Six District 
employees attended this year’s conference August 13-16, 2018 in Portland, Oregon and had the 
opportunity to learn from national air monitoring experts through technical trainings and workshops.  In 
addition, staff networked with fellow air monitoring professionals from around the country, including 
staff from the EPA and the California Air Resources Board.  The conference was also attended by 
equipment manufacturers and other vendors, providing face-to-face opportunities to learn about 
technological advances and new products.  Each day, District staff attended multiple concurrent technical 
workshops, each focusing on a different aspect of air monitoring.   
 
Highlights of the 2018 National Ambient Air Monitoring Conference in Portland, Oregon: 
 
 District staff Christine Holt presented a poster, created with Kim Mitchell, entitled “Air Pollution 

Episode Plan: Informing the Public of Real-Time Health Impacts”.  The poster received 
widespread positive feedback, as well as interest from other air monitoring districts interested in 
implementing similar programs to notify the public of health impacts during air pollution 
episodes. 

 
 Significant conference time was dedicated to the emergence and implementation of low-cost air 

quality sensors (ie. PurpleAir, PlanTower, etc.) and how they relate to Federal Reference and 
Equivalency Methods. 

- Numerous agencies and contractors gave presentations on testing to reveal the strengths 
and weaknesses of these sensors.  In an informal survey, most conference attendees 
indicated that their organizations are currently using or exploring using these types of 
sensors. 

-  South Coast Air Quality Management District (Greater Los Angeles area) conducts 
laboratory testing of low-cost sensors for the measurement of multiple airborne pollutants 
such as PM2.5, PM10, and ozone.  Information on sensor testing results is available on 
their AQ-Spec website (http://www.aqmd.gov/aq-spec/sensornews). 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 99 of 133



 
Informational Items (No Action) - Travel Report: EPA National Ambient Air Monitoring Conference 

November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6.a.ii – Page 2 of 2 
  

- The main takeaway on this subject seems to be that while low-cost sensors are not suitable 
for regulatory air quality monitoring purposes and their output can be difficult to interpret, 
they have an important role to play in community monitoring, outreach, and education. 
The public’s growing demand for real-time air quality information will continue to drive 
the integration of these low-cost sensors into monitoring networks. 
  

 In the high-cost monitoring category, South Coast is using a van-based proton transfer reaction 
mass spectrometer (with a $1,000,000 price tag) to determine whether their emissions inventory 
adequately captures refinery emissions in the South Coast.  They have discovered that their 
inventory under-estimates emissions by up to a factor of twelve. 

 
 Updates from the EPA 

- Time was provided to network with staff from the EPA Region 9 office, including Gwen 
Yoshimura, the head of their air monitoring group, and Jennifer Williams, our EPA 
Region 9 liaison and PM10 specialist.  

- EPA is working to foster better communication with monitoring agencies and to provide 
more useful tools for the monitoring community, ie. a model Quality Assurance Project 
Plan (QAPP), updated training on Technical Systems Audits (TSA), data visualization 
tools, etc. 

- Clint Woods, Deputy Assistant Administrator for the Office of Air and Radiation, made a 
presentation on his group’s strategic plan.   

 
 Other Monitoring and Quality Assurance/Quality Control Topics 

- Tips and tricks were shared from other users of the Teledyne API T640x PM Mass 
Monitor, of which the District will soon have five in the monitoring network.  

- District acquired a Standard Operating Protocol (SOP) for the Teledyne API T640x which 
has been developed by Sonoma Technology, Inc. for the EPA.  

- Several sessions provided the opportunity to review the ambient air monitoring quality 
assurance requirements from the 40 Code of Federal Regulations, Appendix A. This 
focuses on regulatory requirements, performance evaluation programs, technical systems 
audits and data quality control. 

 
 Time was provided to network with staff from the California Air Resources Board, including 

Ranjit Bhullar, the manager of the group responsible for Technical Systems Audits. 
 

 Valuable relationships were begun and renewed with representatives from several of our 
equipment vendors, including Teledyne API, Thermo Scientific, Campbell Scientific, and Alicat. 

 
 
Board Action: 
None. Informational only.  

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 100 of 133



Informational Items (No Action) - Permit Enforcement Activity Report  
November 1, 2018 - Agenda Item No. 6b - Page 1  

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018   

To: District Governing Board 

From: Tori DeHaven, Permit Coordinator/Board Clerk 

Subject: Permit Enforcement Activity Report 
 

The permit database is maintained by the Permit Coordinator.  Information collected from the Air 
Quality Specialists, Air Pollution Control Officer, and Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer is 
entered upon receipt. The data and reports are discussed regularly in permit enforcement meetings. 
Data collected as of September 30, 2018, is as follows: 
 
1st Qtr. Permit Activity: July 1, 2017 – September 30, 2017 
Permit Applications Received 5 
Authority to Construct Issued 5 
Temporary/Permits to Operate Issued 7 
Permit Inspections 18 
Notices of Violation Issued 4 

 
1st Qtr. Permit Activity: July 1, 2018 – September 30, 2018 
Permit Applications Received 3 

Authority to Construct Issued 2 

Temporary/Permits to Operate Issued 5 

Permit Inspections 12 

Notices of Violation Issued 3 

 
Open Notices of Violation  

 Inyo County Mono County Alpine County
10 0 0

  
 
 
Board Action: 
None. Informational only. 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 101 of 133



Informational Items (No Action) – Contracts Signed by the Air Pollution Control Officer  
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6c – Page 1 

GREAT	BASIN	UNIFIED	AIR	POLLUTION	CONTROL	DISTRICT	
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018   

To: District Governing Board 

From: Susan Cash, Administrative Projects Manager 

Subject: Contracts Signed by the Air Pollution Control Officer 

 
Summary: 

The District’s purchasing, bidding and contracting policy allows the Air Pollution Control Officer 
(APCO) to execute leases, contracts and purchase orders for consultant and contractor services 
when the value is less than or equal to $10,000.  The APCO can also execute contract change 
orders or amendments when the value of the change order is less than 10% of the contract price or 
$25,000, whichever is less.  The policy requires the APCO to inform the Board of all such 
contracts or leases at the Board’s next meeting. 
 
Since the last report to the Board, the APCO has executed the following leases, consultant and 
contractor contracts, or contract amendments: 
 
Messner & Hadley – On August 8, 2018, the APCO signed a contract in the amount of $9,600 for 
the yearly audit of our financial statements for the fiscal year July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 
 
Board Action:   
None. Informational only. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 102 of 133



Informational Item (No Action) – Fiscal Year 2018 – 2019 1st Quarter Financial Reports (July 1 – September 30) 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6d  – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Patricia Gilpin, Fiscal Services Technician  

Subject: FY 2018-2019 1st Quarter Financial Reports  

 
Summary: 
Financial summaries for the 1st quarter of the 2018-19 fiscal year are attached. The District operates 
two main budgets, the “District” and the “SB 270”.  The District Budget’s income and expenses are 
traditional air pollution control activities within the tri-county boundaries, with exception of any air 
pollution control income and expenses related to the City of Los Angeles’ water-diversion activities. 
The SB 270 Budget’s income and expenses are related to the City of Los Angeles activities at Owens 
and Mono Lakes.  Funds for both budgets are held in the Inyo County Treasury.   
 
The District also has three sub-budgets: The Owens Lake Trust Fund, the Clean Air Projects 
Program, and the Keeler Dunes Dust Control Project.  Reports on these budgets are also included in 
this summary.  Funds for these three sub-budgets are also held in the Inyo County Treasury. 
 
The District received $225,000 for the Woodsmoke Reduction Pilot Program, all the funds have been 
encumbered.   
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
 
Board Action:  
None, Information only. 
 
Attachments: 

1.  FY 2018-19 1st Quarter Financial Reports (July 1 – September 30) 
  

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 103 of 133



EXPENSES 1st Quarter Budget % of Budget

I Employee Costs

A Employee Wages 71,179.17          340,000.00     20.94%

B Retirement 17,284.22          54,500.00       31.71%

C Insurance Benefits 13,693.05          55,000.00       24.90%

D Taxes 15,181.08          60,500.00       25.09%

F Worker's Compensation Insurance 2,932.22            3,000.00         97.74%

          Employee Costs 120,269.74        513,000.00     23.44%

 

II Operating & Compliance Costs

A Advertising - Legal Notices & Ads 768.94                2,200.00         34.95%

B Dues, Subscriptions Education, Use Tax, Fees, AB2588 1,941.41            6,100.00         31.83%

C
Equipment: Computer, Furniture, General, Office, Safety, 

Scientific, Software (<$5,000 ea.)
5,454.60            15,500.00       35.19%

D Fuel and Gasoline 440.51                4,000.00         11.01%

E Health & Safety -                      1,000.00         0.00%

F Insurance - Liability, Fire & Casualty 9,410.73            9,500.00         99.06%

G Leases & Rents: Equipment, Office, Site, Storage 6,194.33            23,000.00       26.93%

H Maintenance & Repairs of Equipment - Labor 275.02                10,000.00       2.75%

I Maintenance & Repairs of Equipment - Materials 74.13                  15,000.00       0.49%

J Postage and Shipping 91.67                  1,000.00         9.17%

K Professional & Special Services 393.13                8,800.00         4.47%

L Supplies & Tools (In-Field, Office, General Use) 229.44                2,500.00         9.18%

M Transportation & Travel 1,158.33            4,900.00         23.64%

N Utilities 1,610.30            6,400.00         25.16%

O Public Assistance/Grant Programs -                      6,000.00         0.00%

          Operating & Compliance Costs 28,042.54          115,900.00     24.20%

III Materials & Equipment

A Equipment: Computer, Furniture, General, Office, Scientific, 

Software (>$5,000 ea.)
-                      27,850.00       0.00%

B Capital Expenditure Fund: Vehicles & Equipment -                      4,500.00         0.00%

Materials and Equipment Costs -                      32,350.00       0.00%

TOTAL EXPENSES (Parts I, II, III) 148,312.28        661,250.00     22.43%

IV

A EPA 105 Grant (Restricted) -                      71,889.00       0.00%

B EPA PM2.5 Grant (Restricted) 2,691.87            18,245.00       3.74%

C AB 617 -                      5,618.00         0.00%

Grants 2,691.87            95,752.00       2.81%

Total Expenses 151,004.15$     757,002.00$   19.95%

Grant Expenses

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District

District Budget    FY 2018-2019

For the 1st Quarter (Ending September 30, 2018)

Agenda Item No. 6d - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 104 of 133



REVENUE 1st Quarter Budget % of Budget

I Fees, Permits & Penalties

A AB 2588 - Toxic Hot Spots -                      1,500.00         0.00%

B Conservation Mgmt. Plan/Prescribed Burn Plan 70.00                  5,000.00         1.40%

C Geothermal -                      310,000.00     0.00%

D Hearing Board -                      -                   0.00%

E Initial Permit Fees (FF, ATC, Mods) 12,756.00          30,000.00       42.52%

D Penalties & Late Fees 987,478.00        12,000.00       8228.98%

G Sources (Asbestos, Diesel, Fuel, Electric, PERP) 22,473.00          115,000.00     19.54%

H Service Station Vapor Recovery 1,758.00            15,000.00       11.72%

          Fees, Permits & Penalties 1,024,535.00    488,500.00     209.73%

II Other Revenue

A Air Monitoring Audits -                      -                   -                

B Interest -                      2,000.00         0.00%

C Per Capita Fee -                      -                   -                

D Sales, Services, Fees, Rebates & Refunds 80.73                  7,250.00         1.11%

E State Subvention (3 counties) -                      138,500.00     0.00%

F Town of Mammoth Lakes (Air Monitoring) -                      25,000.00       0.00%

G From Capital Asset Reserves: E&M -                      -                   0.00%

Other Revenue 80.73                  172,750.00     0.05%

Total Permits, Fees & Other Revenue 1,024,615.73    661,250.00     154.95%

III Grant Funds (Restricted)

A  EPA 105 Grant (Restricted) -                      71,889.00       0.00%

B  EPA PM2.5 Grant (Restricted)  22,245.00          18,245.00       121.92%

C AB 617 -                      5,618.00         -                

Total Grants 22,245.00          95,752.00       23.23%

         TOTAL REVENUE (w/ Grants) 1,046,860.73$  757,002.00$   138.29%

Reconcile to Inyo County Treasury as of 9/30/2018

District General Fund  Reserves 1,141,358.43$  

Capital Asset Accrual Reserves 92,365.64$        

Spendable/Available Cash 920,367.98$     

CEQA Lead Agency Litigation Funds (1) 41,174.42$        

103 Grant Funds (PM2.5) 39,352.92$        

105 Grant Funds 23,766.63$        

2,258,386.02$  

Balance, IC Auditor Report 9/30/2018 2,258,843.51$  

IC Auditor to correct, should be SB 270 (457.49)$            

2,258,386.02$  

Checking account balance as of 9/30/2018=$6,634.81
1 ORMAT Ligitation Funds

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District

District Budget    FY 2018-2019

For the 1st Quarter (Ending September 30, 2018)

Agenda Item No. 6d - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 105 of 133



EXPENSES 1st Quarter Budget Adjusted Budget % of Budget

I      Employee Costs

A Employee Wages 350,652.50        1,715,500.00    1,715,500.00    20.44%

B Retirement 156,276.30        337,000.00       337,000.00       46.37%

C Insurance Benefits 93,605.57           397,000.00       397,000.00       23.58%

D Taxes 74,457.12           301,500.00       301,500.00       24.70%

E Worker's Compensation Insurance 16,615.96           13,500.00          13,500.00          123.08%

          Employee Costs 691,607.45        2,764,500.00    2,764,500.00    25.02%

II      Operating & Compliance 

A Advertising - Legal Notices & Ads 383.49                4,500.00            4,500.00            8.52%

B Dues, Subscriptions, Education, Use Tax & Fees 10,453.11           33,000.00          33,000.00          31.68%

C Equipment: Computer, Furniture, General, Office, Safety, Scientific, Software 

(<$5,000 ea.)
27,727.06           112,000.00       112,000.00       24.76%

D Fuel and Gasoline 5,279.56             25,000.00          25,000.00          21.12%

E Health & Safety -                      5,000.00            5,000.00            0.00%

F Insurance - Liability, Fire & Casualty 53,335.49           52,000.00          52,000.00          102.57%

G Leases & Rents: Equipment, Office, Site, Storage 30,206.85           112,000.00       112,000.00       26.97%

H Maintenance & Repairs of Equipment - Labor 2,853.02             50,500.00          50,500.00          5.65%

I Maintenance & Repairs of Equipment - Materials 41,327.83           175,000.00       175,000.00       23.62%

J Postage and Shipping 768.82                2,000.00            2,000.00            38.44%

K Professional & Special Services 48,199.88           1,184,000.00    1,316,725.00    3.66%

L Supplies and Tools (In-field, Office, General Use) 3,832.87             22,500.00          22,500.00          17.03%

M Transportation & Travel 13,141.21           28,000.00          28,000.00          46.93%

N Utilities 13,992.93           67,500.00          67,500.00          20.73%

O Control Measure Testing -                      200,000.00       200,000.00       0.00%

P Public Outreach & Education -                      10,000.00          10,000.00          0.00%

          Operating & Compliance Costs 251,502.12        2,083,000.00    2,215,725.00    11.35%

III    Materials & Equipment 

A Equipment: Computer, Furniture, General, Office, Scientific, Software (>$5,000 

ea.) 14,819.85           230,500.00       230,500.00       6.43%

B Vehicles & ATVs -                      40,500.00          40,500.00          0.00%

Materials & Equipment Costs 14,819.85          271,000.00       271,000.00       5.47%

Expenses Total (Parts I, II, III) 957,929.42$      5,118,500.00$  5,251,225.00$  18.24%

IV

A 2014 Stipulated Judgment (Paragraph 12.G) -$                    -$                   750,000.00$     -            

FY 2017-2018 SB 270 Fee 957,929.42$      5,118,500.00$  6,001,225.00$  15.96%

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District

SB 270 Budget    FY 2018-2019

For the 1st Quarter (Ending September 30, 2018)

     Owens Lake Scientific Advisory Panel

Agenda Item No. 6d - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 106 of 133



REVENUE 1st Quarter Budget Adjusted Budget % of Budget

I 5,118,500.00$   5,118,500.00$  5,118,500.00$  100.00%

-$                    -$                   -$                   -            

Total SB 270 Fee Assessment 5,118,500.00$   5,118,500.00$  5,118,500.00$  100.00%

II Other Revenue

FY17-18 Carry-overs 132,725.00        -                     132,725.00       -            

Carry-over: Owens Lake Scientific Advisory Panel 750,000.00        -                     750,000.00       -            

From Asset Reserve: -                      -                     -                     -            

Interest -                      -                     -                     -            

Sales, Services, Rebates, Refunds 457.49                -                     -                     -            

883,182.49        -                     882,725.00       100.05%

TOTAL REVENUE 6,001,682.49$   5,118,500.00$  6,001,225.00$  100.01%

Reconcile to Inyo County Treasury as of 9/30/2018

SB 270 General Fund Reserves 2,262,417.46$   

Capital Asset Accrual Reserves 184,200.94$      

Spendable/Available Cash 5,082,163.82$   

7,528,782.22$   

Balance, IC Auditor Report 9/30/2018 7,528,324.73$   

IC Auditor to correct, inadvertently posted to District 457.49$              

7,528,782.22$   

Checking account balance as of 9/30/2018=$18,988.42

     Fees, Permits & Penalties

     Reserve Policy Credit

SB 270 Budget    FY 2018-2019

For the 1st Quarter (Ending September 30, 2018)

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District

Agenda Item No. 6d - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 107 of 133



       Beginning Cash Balance 7/1/2018 1,068,887.93        

       June 30, 2018 Interest-earned Inyo County 3,314.90                

1,072,202.83        

    Expenses

    Professional Services  -                          

    Checking account balance 3.90                        

3.90                        

Reconcile to Inyo County Treasury 9/30/2018 1,072,202.83$      

     Balance: IC Auditors Report as of 9/30/2018 1,072,202.83$      

 

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District

Owens Lake Trust Fund    FY 2018-2019 

For the 1st Quarter (Ending September 30, 2018)

Agenda Item No. 6d - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 108 of 133



        Beginning Cash Balance 7/1/2018 779,521.44            

        June 30, 2018 Interest-earned Inyo County 2,417.50                

781,938.94            

      Expenses

      Projects -                          

      Checking account balance 30.31                      

30.31                      

Reconcile to Inyo County Treasury as of 9/30/2018 781,938.94$         

     Balance: Inyo County Auditors as of 9/30/2018 781,938.94$         

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District

Clean Air Projects Program    FY 2018-2019

For the 1st Quarter (Ending September 30, 2018)

Agenda Item No. 6d - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 109 of 133



       Beginning Cash Balance 7/1/2018 1,272,368.77        

       June 30, 2018 Interest-earned Inyo County 4,156.94                

       Checking account balance at year-end 4,487.90                

1,281,013.61        

     Expenses

     Paid year-end invoices FY17-18 accruals 78,399.61              

     Employee Costs 13,994.78              

     General Expenses 2,120.20                

     Jimmy Myers payment (20,000.00)             

     Projects 37,547.00              

     Administration 318.00                    

112,379.59            

     Checking account balance 1,103.09                

113,482.68            

Reconcile to Inyo County Treasury 9/30/2018 1,167,530.93$      

     Balance: Inyo County Auditors as of 9/30/2018 1,167,530.93$      

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District

Keeler Dunes Dust Control Projects     FY 2018-2019

For the 1st Quarter (Ending September 30, 2018)

Agenda Item No. 6d - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 110 of 133



Informational Items (No Action) – Fiscal Year 2018-2019 State Subvention Funding Application  
November 1, 2018– Agenda Item No. 6e – Page 1 

GREAT	BASIN	UNIFIED	AIR	POLLUTION	CONTROL	DISTRICT	
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018   

To: District Governing Board 

From: Susan Cash, Administrative Projects Manager 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2018 – 2019 State Subvention Funding application 

 
Summary:   
At the September Board meeting, permission was granted to the Air Pollution Control Officer sign 
and submit the State Subvention Application to the California Air Resources Board.  The District 
submitted and completed the subvention application to California Air Resources Board on September 
26, 2018. 
 
The completed application is attached for informational purposes. 
 
 
Board Action:   
None.  Information only.  
 
Attachment: 

1. Fiscal Year 2018 – 2019 Subvention Application 
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 111 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 112 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 113 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 114 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 115 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 116 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 117 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 118 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 119 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 120 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 121 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 122 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 123 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 124 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 125 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 126 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 127 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 128 of 133



Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 1
181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 129 of 133



Informational Items (No Action) -Update on Woodsmoke Reduction Pilot Program 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6f – Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018    

To:              District Governing Board  

From: Susan Cash, Administrative Projects Manager  

Subject: Update on Woodsmoke Reduction Pilot Program  

 
Summary:  
The Woodsmoke Reduction Pilot Program (Program) is part of California Climate Investments, a 
statewide program that puts cap-and-trade dollars to work reducing greenhouse gas emissions, 
strengthening the economy, and improving public health and the environment—particularly in 
disadvantaged communities.  Assembly Bill 1613 committed $5,000,000 in funding for replacing 
uncertified, inefficient wood burning devices with cleaner burning and more efficient devices. 
 
Statute establishes investment minimums for disadvantaged and low-income communities and low-
income households.  The Program is designed to help households replace an uncertified wood stove 
or insert used as the primary source of heat with a cleaner burning and more efficient device.  
 
The District’s Program officially launched on August 1, 2018 with advertisements and public service 
announcements in area newspapers, on radio stations, and on the District’s website.  The District had 
$225,000 in available vouchers.  Voucher eligibility of $2,000 or $4,000 was determined based on the 
location of the appliance to be replaced and/or income eligibility set by the state.  
 
By August 17, 2018 (13 business days), 17 vouchers for $2,000 and 47 vouchers for $4,000 had been 
issued and a waiting list was established.  Advertising was curtailed.  The waiting list grew to 26 
additional applicants with $102,000 of needed vouchers before it, too, was closed on September 12, 
after 29 business days.  Those that are still on the list at the close of the Program will be the first 
applicants should the state renew the Program in future years with substantially the same guidelines. 
 
Eight of the initial vouchers were returned due to ineligibility of the appliance to be replaced.  
Several vouchers were redeemed for less than the face value issued.  These two factors have allowed 
the District to issue vouchers to 9 more consumers from the waiting list.  As it stands now, the 
waiting list has 17 applicants desiring $68,000 in vouchers.  As vouchers are redeemed by retailers, 
any remaining balance will be added to the $857.82 remaining in order to generate more vouchers if 
possible. 
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 130 of 133



Informational Items (No Action) -Update on Woodsmoke Reduction Pilot Program 
November 1, 2018 – Agenda Item No. 6f – Page 2 

The District currently has seven cooperating retailers installing replacement appliances.  To date, 27 
vouchers for $88,642.18 have been redeemed and 37 vouchers with the potential of $136,000 are still 
outstanding.  Broken down by county, the potential expenditures are: 
 

 Alpine  3 vouchers  $   12,000.00 
 Inyo  51 vouchers $ 177,269.89 
 Mono  10 vouchers $   34,872.29 

 
The initial report regarding the program to the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association 
(administering the program on behalf of the California Air Resources Board), including reductions in 
Greenhouse Gas emissions, is due on November 15, 2018 for program activity through October 31, 
2018. At that time, the District will also be billing for the administrative costs (staff time, advertising, 
supplies, etc.) that have been expended. A copy of that report will be available in the District offices 
after that date. Quarterly reports will be submitted until the program is finished, and those reports will 
also be available in the District offices. The final report, when all monies have been expended, will 
be provided to your board at a future board meeting. 
 
In summary, the program has proven to be very popular, with demand far outstripping the resources 
available in this round of funding. It is our hope that the state will renew the pilot program in future 
years based on the success we have already had and will continue to have as the program is fully 
implemented. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None. 
 
Board Action:  
None.  For informational purposes only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 131 of 133



Air Pollution Control Officer Report (No Action) 
November 1, 2018 - Agenda Item No. 8 - Page 1 

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
157 Short Street, Bishop, California 93514-3537 

Tel: 760-872-8211   Fax: 760-872-6109 
 
 

BOARD REPORT 
 
Mtg. Date: November 1, 2018   

To: District Governing Board 

From: Phillip L. Kiddoo, Air Pollution Control Officer 

Subject: Air Pollution Control Officer Report 
 

A verbal report will be given at the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phillip L. Kiddoo 
Air Pollution Control Officer 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 132 of 133



20
19

 
 

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 
 

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 
M

A
R

C
H

 
A

P
R

IL
 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0
 
1
1
 
1
2
 

1
3
 
1
4
 
1
5
 
1
6
 
1
7
 
1
8
 
1
9
 

2
0
 
2
1
 
2
2
 
2
3
 
2
4
 
2
5
 
2
6
 

2
7
 
2
8
 
2
9
 
3
0
 
3
1
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
 

 
 

 
1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
 

 
 

 
1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3
 
1
4
 
1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0
 
2
1
 
2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7
 
2
8
 
2
9

3
0

3
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
M

A
Y

 
 

JU
N

E
 

JU
L

Y
 

A
U

G
U

S
T

 
 

s 
m

 
t 

w
 

t 
f 

s 
 

 
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0
 
1
1
 

1
2
 
1
3
 
1
4
 
1
5
 
1
6
 
1
7
 
1
8
 

1
9
 
2
0
 
2
1
 
2
2
 
2
3
 
2
4
 
2
5
 

2
6
 
2
7
 
2
8
 
2
9
 
3
0
 
3
1
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0
 
1
1
 
1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7
 
1
8
 
1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4
 
2
5
 
2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
 

 
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 
 

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
 

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0
 
1
1
 
1
2
 
1
3
 
1
4
 

1
5
 
1
6
 
1
7
 
1
8
 
1
9
 
2
0
 
2
1
 

2
2
 
2
3
 
2
4
 
2
5
 
2
6
 
2
7
 
2
8
 

2
9
 
3
0
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

 
 

 
 

 
1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3
 
1
4
 
1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0
 
2
1
 
2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7
 
2
8
 
2
9

3
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
s 

m
 

t 
w

 
t 

f 
s 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

   

R
e
gu
la
r 
M
ee

Ɵ
n
gs
 o
f 
th
e
 G
B
U
A
P
C
D
 G
o
ve
rn
in
g 
B
o
ar
d
  

1
st
 T
h
u
rs
d
ay
 o
f 
o
d
d
 M

o
n
th
s 

A
d
o
p
te
d
 J
u
ly
 1
2
, 2
0
1
8
 

G
re
at
 B
as
in
 U
n
ifi
ed

 A
P
C
D
 

1
5
7
 S
h
o
rt
 S
tr
ee
t 

B
is
h
o
p
, C
A
 9
3
5
1
4
 

7
6
0
.8
7
2
.8
2
1
1
 

w
w
w
.g
b
u
ap
cd
.o
rg
 

181101 BOARD PACKET ~ Page 133 of 133


	5.1 2018 Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts.pdf
	Summary of 2018 Wildfire Smoke Impacts
	Slide Number 2
	Health� Advisories
	Health Advisories
	Updated Smoke Webpage
	Emergency Air Quality�Monitoring Program
	Particulate Matter Data�Alpine County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Mono County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Mono County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Mono County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Mono County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Mono County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Mono County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Inyo County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Inyo County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Inyo County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Inyo County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Particulate Matter Data�Inyo County: June 1 – September 30, 2018
	Low Cost Air Quality Sensors�www.purpleair.com/map�
	New Monitors��

	5.2 2018 Fire Season 24 Hour PM10 and PM25 Community Concentrations.pdf
	Sheet1

	5.3 Useful Websites for Smoke and Dust Events.pdf
	Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District
	Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Websites
	Other Websites




